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IVan Sh reholdei

Vs aic exctt cito rin OU up to date oo the hold new dirt ction

Wrlhreen is taking to help cosure market Ieadei ship giowtli and

1uolitihihtv sti Il into dv liitnrr

out ai ago Walgic ens laiinc lied one the most important strategic

and opei atonal tr iiislormations since our founding in 1901 di is en by

etic of giowth strat pies As we continue to advance these strategies

has made substantial progi ss in ow tansformatton And seal 2012

was hieakthtough ii in tius transforr tation as we expanded glob thy

mcI digitall5 turned drugstoies into health and daii1 hr
log destinations

ci tergc rl Ic ading ft rc in commomty healthcare and launched

ro andhi Pro customer loyalt program railed Balance Rewards

10 lay Wtlgietns is much inot than achtiottai drugstoie were fast

hr xntng global phat mac yded hc slth and wellbeing enterprise inspired

liutullc puriuw ad hclp psupic gui wc 11 stay wril and live well

11y pin siting
our put pose Waigmeens seeks to own the stratcgic territory

of eli the ph where hr alt and happiness conic together for oin

tstomc is hhat intersection is both plt steal place with Walgicerts

8001 stoics on some of the best corners in America arid also virtual

placers it It constant advances in onltite and mobile cess

It hoit by lie
ping people to get stal

arid live well it tue corner of

Ic pp sncl healths we catt achievc our goal to become My \kTalgieens

11
caei one in Aitt nc thc In Si choir ni healt Ft sd dad1 living

In list rI Ui Vi
aug ecmts furthc ciysnalhied arid ac celei ared our

strategic

tr srtsform itiomt vit ii dynrntic new initiatives and disciplined execut tort

bough this str
itegic

for us Walgreerts has established strong pi itform

lot 0rowth uid bug tc rrit value creation 10th globally and in expanded

lit btistrtess

lie roost poaci
liii ac celerntt of our growth strategies tftis

year was the

strategic utnc uship ste aitriounc cci in lone 2012 th the Swiss based

\llitnce Boots tbll to create the wo ItIs first pharmacy Icc itealth

utd 11
icing

citt
erprise

Vs algreens lIlian Boots partitersf ip cotnbirtes the strengths and

ctpertisc of two oitic brands ith oritplementuy geographic footprints

slttcccl values and hcrutage of trustcci healthc ate sc rvices clatiitg
back

more titan lOt ars hi alsc positicots oui omopany for short

artd long tcrrn grovitit itt threc major ys

Briitgittg togetliei tite stierstIts

and expet tire of earls ontpanty still di ivc forts ai ci Walgi wrts str oeguc

to transform the naditional tlrngsioie to health and claus ltvnig

ilesttnationt ads attic orirttutity pfttrnacy light cor istcm

with an ocitstaitdtng experience through cob mcccl eittplciyc engagemeitt

expand ac ross nest chaitneis arid maikc ts and rents cut our cost

stnc ture through coi tutnious trnpioremertt anti innovation

ogether Waigrc cur and All isnc

Boots Itave the largest phai mac euttcai whoic salc crtcl chst Idution

itetwork in the world including associates arid toint vc otitres iilt uncirc

than 70 distnihutioit enters dc liven og tc more thut 170110ff ph rim sctc

doc tOm hcclth enters hcopmtals in 21 countries Well al be mIte

worltls largest single purct sser of prerc nmpticm chugs aitd cme of tite largest

global buyei of many health beauty and otiter clatly ltvntg products

Walgneens is alteady the largc st pharmacy chain tite Ijnitetl Statcs

and Alliancc Bocits is he lcading phammacy led health aitd beauty group

ic toss Srtropc with fist
grosving prcscntc tnt enicrging ro trkcts

hcgether thc Waig teens Allianic ioco.s glob sI phat ni tcy
lcd hc aids

and wehlhei
tg platform is positu ecl fciu selling and dust thutin1 pncdmtcts

in 26 count icr through supply ham rinmatnised tnt the mntdu try

lie strati
gic

rrtni rship ith tlhanc Bocts alsc is
shied

mcci to unitic

signdicant econtontrc valor for shianeholdcm as Wtlgre ns goal is loi

the cornhtned nergies across both cumntpanies to clehser $100 moillicir

to $151 militon in the trst year mrtcl $1 bilhomi by thc end of 2016

Vs also expect the trnsactiort be acc ccli to Vs Jgrcc rc eamrmr p5

per diluted sbtacc in seal 2013 by rota 4hhy 50 tci $0 ext loditic

one time transaction cmsts

Vs lube ft al 2112 was market by thc Alliance Boots ti am am tiori antch

other stnatcgic breakthroughs alsc hi ought significant hieaclvu nids

First civerail cc cnornk onduti itS rein vmnecl wcak mffc
icig

onsumem

spendrntg Scconcl aita ntoue significantly sincc Januaug 211 we matlc

strategic dc cisron that Walgcecns ould not pactic ip te in major

pitarmnacy hcnefit netstod Express Si pts tS we were unable to react

oncnac agreement that pros icied fair reiintbrtrseinremmt foi ito pharmacy

health and wcblness services we provicic Wc said at dir tune iii mi vs

beheved thc
iortg term naniifications of accepting bxpress cnipts proposal



itli helo market rates and minimal predic ta iility
for thc services

pi
ovide woulc have been much grcatei

than
any

short tein impact

our irnin

ii luly ho esei we announc with Fxpiess Scripts that had reached

ir ultiy eat agieeme
nt hat woi ks foi hoth parti This agri ment is

01 sistent with our ompany principles and is good for oui shareholders

iii employer and the patients arid orrimunities WO rye the nieasstin

sti engthenecl telati nships with many other pharmacy and hcalthcare

ar neis hat due ihe choice cost effectiveness convenience and sersu

ia Waigreens provides tn its patients

oi the fiscal year Walgreeris maintained total ales at $71.6 hillion

id ieved piolits of $2.1 billion oriti oiled selling gencia and admiriis

atixc costs and generated ri cord operating ash 11cm of $4 inlhon

reiall we ic turncd $1.9 billion to shareholdeis through dividends

oid share repurchases loi the year Over the past
five

years slgreens

mvidend ac huevech compound annual eiowth ia of neai ly
24 pci ent

ompared ss ith pen erit lot thc Dow Jones Inclustnal Tserage anti

pmrcen for the SP 500

1dm

usc al 2012 we esc alated the
pace and progress

of our insformation

uhstaotially advancing and executing each of ow five key growth

tr tegies and new initiatis cs

\Va greens
ontinued to reciehne arid res olucionize he dcugstore experieric

odays busy arid budget stretched onsuniei eks uahty and corive

ie see is well as value Walgreens is positioned to give em what they

it when they want it and wi crc they want it flat is why ciur vision

My Wdgie ens is rriuch moi than drugstor hut retail health

nd cluls us ing destinaticmn cuse that piovides coo nent multi haunel

icc ss to cocls and sers ices Rh best in -class utonior experience

lo hat cud this
year we onipletecl our three

year plan to refresh Walgreens

tores with oui ustorner centi ic retailing initi tive ac loss the hairi

ha enhain es the stores look and feel and the shoppers expei ience

ading to highc customnei sitisfdcticmn arid incressed sales

aising
the bar even highcr we ramped up

the rullo it ol ocu grocirulhreakimiy

$1 xpertei cc
pilot stores and store formats in select markets These

tci es bring together nesv nmhm ic tail
esigri concepts

enhancel product

issortmc nts sr ovations in ocim phamn acies and lea th dinics improved

ustcooer enigagemcrit and new curnmem cc tec briologmes from our

iultic hannel 511 ategy
TO position ST aigneens to step out of the traditiona

nigstoie format to create iiew irid unique cusiomet experience

esignrd around customer needs Well Expenenc stcus include sevei al

rmtpstom
niniovations Pharmacists are bc ated ii frcoit of the phtimniacs

cost from behind the countei offering greatci and mcmrc perscmnal paticr

intemaction arid consultation Nurse practitioners are bated adjacent to

the pharmacies pros idirig
broader he ilthcare servic lromni vacc luau ass

and health
testnig tc ncoi crnergencsl

medical treatment Well
xpeuenc

stores ilsn liatuie out expanded fresh ood selections as svell ma enh cccl

beauty departmetits with an iriav of prestige irid mc he cosnietic

skinc ire anti hairc are brands riot typically fciuncl iu drcigstomes

lhrcaigh 2012 we have row opened cir converted neamh 350 Walgmecns

bc ations with our Well Ixpemience format inclciding mat kct ss tile

tianslorniation cd all 68 Walgreens stores in the
ltichaniapolis area such

four expansise new upsc ale flagship stotes in Chicago New York City

las Vegas and Puerto Rico Thcse 20000-plcis squaie foot store

leatute everything from sushi bars cmic and sniootloe bats arid

cafes tc manicure stations Custonncrs walk iti look in sund and say

Wow this is Walgreens

ST wc reinvent the dnugstore experience Walgreens
ontinucd to expand

our selection of private label health and daily living branch th at clclmvet

me sI value to consumers One ol out newest private brands Nice whoc hi

launchc ml in 2011 cdfers more than 101 htghi quality groceiy
and

housetiolct products at prices up to perceiit beloss othet na ional

brands and joins coin Couch Delmshi and Pet Shoppe and

Walcieens stcmmes also cffcr prepaied meals fin immediate oiisumn ttcm

by on the
go consumers expanded grocet items for quick cduivenuenit

pickup and gruw inig
select ion of fresh produce and hsealthy fcocl

hioiccs that are cruc ial to undersenved food desert coniniunit es

lackitig coils enient mitt mticinal opticnis

By sensing as food oasis mn mali1 cii cmiii coinniunities Waigrec iw has

been ecogm7ed b5 First lady Michelle Obamna through her Lets Move

initiatis for helping to tight time chilchhcic obesity epiclernuc hits is

way Yralgmeemis is able to do good while doing gocid business

Walgneens Alliance Iloots partnership w-ill accelerate sit aiegv

to tmansfom mis the traclmtmcaial clnugsnone Not only will ST algmeens offcr

Alliance Boots global health amid Iseauty brandls inc luchiug the biccidls

popular No7 arid Botanic brands but we will also have acccss

the tinpiessive Alliance Boots product development labotatcanies based

in Notttnighamn uglanid to bring eve more unique healthi and be
maiD

products to the tiianket our shelves and consnimens around the world

as fiscal 2013 opened Walgneeus launc lied gnuumidhbneakin

ustomen loyalty pm ogmatri called Balance Rew arcls tbi st offem

easy enrollment instant points uid endless uewands It even mi wards

customers for health\ helsas iom such is cettimig
flu shots amid xercise

Balance Remaamds will take oumn Well Fxpem ience to ness Irvel

Custoinc is cami enroll easily at the store counter online oi with

niohumle des ice redeem poimits
instam

tly
foi mmdam ly all store or

lq

tIlt mu mJ
dclbom Adjmi sted Si 11 mD tan nab on lit mcli rim mirytnotuec

misc
gm

ou th in
penc

cmmi

tilmisnccl Mt on
mututgs

in billions liulbons

12 12 12
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orrirric pioduc ts inn receive honus awards when they keep coming
hack

Vie award points for prescriptions and even when members join in the

Walk with Walgreens personal exercise program
The ustomer insights we

Ic ai througf Balance Rewards also ss ill enhance our customer experience

lie Supremnc ourt decision upholding thc Cole provisions
of tIre

ltic ni Protection and Affordable Care Act was the year top healthcare

news in rapidly esolving healthcare market Waigreens continued to

seize new opporturnties to deliver convenient high quaht1 affordable care

oid help address the nations healthr are ncc ds

Building from coin foundation of approximately 8001 ores more than

26000 phairnacists more than 17000 pharmacy techricians and 300

nurse practitioners at the 700 lake are limes arid workplace health and

wcllncss entc rs slgreens is quickly moving foim ard to serve as leading

community pharmacy health and wellness provider and aluecl partner for

piyers
raid

pauents as the first place for daily healthcare Our healthc are

Si ategy is clcsigncd to lurk all patient touch points
md hanneis 51cM es

online tcleplione and home delrs
cry to ac hiese three goals

our roie ph.irmaci hiirinpcs We ai
priimnciting

and priwicling

medication adherence diabetes management children hc alth wellness

education DIV caie arid other services tha build trus id relationships

b1 5mm rdinig
hest in lass patient expericnce

To that end wi are pursuing

etfic ienc ies that icc up phai macist time to engage with patients and praince

at thr highest level of their prok ssion

beyond oui core pharmacy business to provide broader retail bealti

arid wellricss ser\ icc romn Pr
eventioni and screening services to cliromuc

care management Walgi cern acquired BicrScnip Inc comniuniry specia1t

phai many business to xpand our role in sen ing FITV oncolog and transplant

patrc
nts and othcr with lironic and complex health conditions that require

intensive drrmt therapies We are alsc expanding nurse practitioners scope of

services beyond minor episodic care and broadening
their duties to include

closer ollahoi at ion with
pnmn iry

care physicians

from our traditional pharmacy health and wellness business to

becorrrc valued
partner

for doctors health plans arid health systems helping

to manage variety of patient populations hrle inrproving total health

outcomes and lower
rig

costs

RecogniiiOng
how wc are tmansfornunrg cornnrunity pharmacy Mit Compony

magazine named Walgreeris to its list of Most Innovative Health are onipanies

for the second time in three years Demonstrating this innovation Waigreens

cmtiriuecl to be the nations number one prmvatc ector pros ider of flu

mnaimris Winc the IT Secretary of Health md l4urnani Services

Kathleen Sebclius the nation top healthcane official meccrved her flu shot

last ssirirer she nt tci Walgrcerrs

By Well xpcrrenrc Waigreens means monc than sto es product selections

arid ices that delight Wcll xpeiiencr curries clown to the women and

mcmi of
nigreemns

who deliver health and happiness when they engage our

mstomers and patrcnts

As we reinriaginied our stores we also raised the bar omr employee customer

engagement with
srgnnfic

aiim invcstiirenits mi training and development of our

leadership and stonc teams The curriculum includes an intensive Leadership

\carlemniy and in fiscal 2013 Walgrec us Urrrversir fur cmnpluyecs

AIm his year we launc hed trim customer experience
curriculum and hanige

mnraiiagemenit program
for orw front line store team members emphasizing

tbncc prrncrples of senvic asy make it easy for our customers to do husrnes

with irs Recogni7e care fom and cominnect with customers and Solvc own

our cutomers issues and sce them through to resolution Store nianageis

are tr ummng Ic hc ttcr cnngage and motivate emnplo ces

Our instomer experience pilots base focused on giving our nil omnem

different expeniencc than all other retailers at the key touch points in

phmmnmacy beauty and daily living In addition we minis have rich ustomnmer

segmentation data that will allow mis no differentiate even further

personalize our services mud rncasrlrc ciii effec tivemiess Ion xanrrplc

we are piloting service mnrcsdel for chronic care patients such as those

with diabetes or hlIV that will help them take ontmol cd them hrcalthcare

and weilness dec isions

Hum goal is to ensure every Waigmeens employee adopts an extiaomclmnarv

cnrstcrmer sers ice nnimrdset and that we cmbed actions and hel ivicrns th

advance cml customer care

\s the world hecomn monc interconnected through global ornmc rcc amid

onimnerc Waigree is ontmnuenl extending our reach to mcw chamimmcls

and market

We broke even more new ground
this

year mu harnessing omnimenc arid

immobile tc chuology leveraging our conrvc rumemnt In ck mid mnnontai lccationn

with leading edge unimuc options we are giving ustomers evc ri nrore of what

they want brcader selection pncducts and envic em where they warn

it whethen delivered tc their hcnmes or ava lihie for pickup am the stcnre

amid when they want twcn days next
clay or next hour

As we advar cd our imntegratronn
of dmnmgstore.corn Icanhrug online retailer

we purchased last year whic his pertomnrrcdt beyond expectations

we opened new 50001
sqnmar

our cnimnnnsenc dmst ibritron facility

also in uchecl mciv ted
hnnsolcgies

fcmr ustonmers to mrrterac with Wdgr ecu

through snnartphnnmres amid apps

Walgreemns can now send text message to patiunts
whcms thci puesrup norms

am due fom refill wiud
patmemnts cars omniplete with simple refill reply

text Combm sing the convemuence nil cmnhmne shnnppinrg merlin our mnerghbom hood

stores we expanded Web Pickup services at pilct bc strons allowning

consumers to shop omilimre at Walgncens com urcl pick nip
cinders at therm

Waigreens stonc in as utile as ann hour

Going firm then cristomncr who check mu nt
army Walgmeer store through

Fomim
sciuane on their smar tphonnes instamitly nec ni\ urniqu scan imrable

cmupon

on their phcsnes Oral is redeemable in the stonc with no tcxtmng reply on

other
steps mcquiicd Customers can also

print photos at any storc nimnec
thy

mom their iPhone ant Anclncimcl nnnbnlc devimes And to uclvanc our ic2e as

comnnmunitl he ultbnc arc leaclcr Walgreens can nose deliver path it data
climcctl

to primary card prcwiclem to improve tine cocnrdmnuntmon cnf care

Expamndrnng intc mew nmiarkcts witbn tIme Allmanicm ots partnemslnp slgreens

now has interests mu hnisnnesses in Furope and across the globe

Together Vi algrcens and Ailmanc Boots will raw unmnatchnedl supply hammn mnd

prdneunenrent expcm tmse offering ustomnrems iurnovative minrtion and optimal

efficienc mes We 11 have portfolio of retail md business hr nncls
mmncludimng

global health amid beauty pnoduct brannds th ut ill hc ninpar ullelccl inn tine

industry This will
give us unique platform for growth arid ml cuppontunit

to funthuer develop diversified and rcmbust cmfrt
pocil mnross the

bummcnpe

and kcy emndngiug mmnnrkets

The partnership also advances Allucirce Bcots stn
itegres

As Stefannc Pc ssmnna

executive cbianmmnnan of Alliance Boots sand Ihms
siralegic In mnrsactmomn rcprc seuts

furthem vrtnl step in achicving orrr vision of becoming global phnarmacy led

hnealthcard leader We believc that it wrll bring cleat benefits to all slakehioldem

reatmng significant rod usnaunnable urdustrial valise
thrrimsgbn synergnes amid

the deploynnent of our jcuint expc ntisc The fit is natural WaIg eemns onsunnuner

profile in the U.S is snnnrhar to Boots inn the .K in many ways trusted and

much-loved phammmnacy brand wrthi
slicing brenmtage

Inn the transaction Walgreens exchanged $4.0 billion in cash and 83 mnnnlliou

shares of stcmck for IS pci cent equity ciss niershup stakc mu lhiannc Bc ots

and svill have the option 1cm proc cccl to full cuutnihinatiumni by an quim mug

the remamnimig 55 perci nit of Allianncc Boots wrthnmn thu nc xl three yc aim

Ihe transaction has been structrrned to allow symnengres to he mc almzed by

the mespeu trve management tcammns workmmsg closely together on key projects

while providing tbne oppomtummity to progress to kill integmatiomn Bc tbn comunpanics

believe lids tmansau tion stmuc tune increases tine putenntmnl for vnlnnc rcatmomn

svhule reducing tim irnitual business dmsnnmptron and allowmnrg timmuc for

thoughtful nrtegration plan ruing



Meanwhile Waigreens continued to expand its presence in the US
market This

year we purchased 144-store regional drugstore chain

in the mid-South region which includes USA Drug Super Drug

Mays Drug Med-X arid Drug Warehouse stores

kcinocnt our cost structl.srE turough con 0.0 00115 1.10 prove roust

on.d innovo tin

After achieving our goal of delivering snore than $1 hillion in annual

pro-tax cost savings from 2008 to 2011 Walgreens continued process

improvement and innovation have hecorne part of our corporate DNA
at tI to Company

As we continued driving significant improvements in our cost structure

sontrolling our expenses
arid making surgical cost reductions as needed

these steps helped our Company to weather the stdl-recovening economy
and the disruption to our prescription

volume this
year They also helped

us free up investment capital for our strategic initiatives Numerous

advances in operating efficiency including energy-saving measures

that make Walgreens retail leader in environmental protection

also helped reduce costs

The WalgreensAlliance Boots partnership provides real cost-efficiency

opportunities most significantly in four areas procurement synergies

including purchasing prescription and over-the-counter drugs

daily living products goods purchased not for resale and

revenue synergies from introducing Alliance Boots product brands

to Walgreens and Duane Reacle stores We also
expect revenue synergies

from sharing best practices particularly in pharmacy operations

hcaith and wellness services and logistics

Looking ahead

to fiscal 2013 managements overarclung focus will he on three major

areas First executing the Alliance Boots strategic partnership and

realizing the anticipated synergies arid benefits as the first global

pharm.agy-led health and wellbeing enterprise Second expanding our

Well Experience stores and concepts throughout Walgreens Arid third

advancing the role that community pharmacy cart play in healthcare

across the communities we serve every day

We
expect to make substantial progress in each of these areas with

relentless focus on disciplined execution and pursuit of optimum

efficiency all toward reaching our long-term goals of double-digit

growth in earnings per share increasing return on invested capital

arid top-tier shareholder returns Looking ahead we believe we are

right on track to deliver

On snore personal note Walgreens steady arid substantial progress in

our strategic transformation over tlìe
past

several
years

stands in tribute

to the vision leadership and steady guidance of Al McNally our non-

executive chairman of the hoard from 2009 until this year and who has

served on the board of directors since 1999 Al has played an instnarnental

and indispensable role as Walgreens developed and advanced our trans

formnational strategies Importantly his mantra of disciplined planning

and execution has become hardwired throughout the management team

and company As Al rotates from his role as non-executive chairman

consistent with board policy we are grateful that Walgreens will continue

to benefit front his service on the hoard

In further changes to the \l/algreens board we welcomed slew director

Janice Babiak former partner at Ernst Young LIP Also with the

completion of Walgreens initial investment in Alliance Boots itt August

Stefano Pessina executive chairman of Alliance Boots and Dominic

Murphy director and member of KKR Co L.P joined the Walgreens

board of directors as several members of Waigreens most senior

management team joined the Alliance Boots board of directors

This was challenging year for our 240000 employees We asked lot

from then But with t.Iheir usual determination commitment arid
spirit

of service fueled by the nought they provide customers and patients the

Walgreens team stepped up rolled with the changes met the challenges

head on arid pulled closer together to deliver Well at Walgreenss Our

progress this year itt advancing our transformation while achieving solid

results is tribute to these remarkable men and women It is also

tribute to you our shareholders for
your trust and confidence in our

Company and we sincerely thank you

fames Skinner

Chairman of the Board

%-
Gregory Wasson

President and Chief Executive Officer

October 22 2012



2012 will
go

down in ilgreens histosy as th year the ornpany expanded it

hoi ion acioss nceans national borders and new languagc In mount tog

sti itegk partnership with Allianc Boots in inc Walgreens gained presern

three additional continents rid took sI eg toward becoming the first global

pharma led health and wrllbeing cnterprise his stiategic pirtneis ip hr

togethei two great companies with iconic brands as tnaior component of

Waigreens growth strategy to eapand ac rnss ness channels and sarkcts

In August 2012 the two ompanies announced Walgi ens hal omplc ted its

initial oiseslmc nt in their strategy paitnership This invc stment which on ists

of approxiniately $4 billion in cash md 83.4 million shaic of \Salgreens comniorm

stock in ext hange for 45 pelcent equity stake in Alliance lots also
gis

es Walgrec ns

tlw upton to piuced full cm mhioatiun appnalniatt 1T tin cc ycus by at qolcing thc

remauung 55 pci cent of Alliance Boots Waigreenis initial investment and option cxc hide

the Alliance Boots minority interest in Galernca ltd the Sssiss healthc arc group

lhe Alliance Boots investmcnt in Galenica conti ues to be owned by Alli mncc Boots fri

the benefit of its shareholders othem than Wa
grc ens

Back in 2007 Walgrcenis pmirnary giowth dmisei was opening new stoics That 5emr

the Ccrnpany cut the ibbon on new store every 17 houss Today with ncaily 8000

retail health and daily lsvinf stoics on the best cotners in America Wdg eens strategy

has tsansinonecl from purely ness store growth expansion ititci new markets and

new sys
of mc aching the customer

\t aigreens believes Alliance Boo is penteet In los that nesv
grciwtls strategy lie wo

cornpanmes complementary geographic footprints shared values arid ru histories

of trusted healthc ire services te back more than 100
ycai

As the U.K lcading

pharmcmcy led health and beauty retailes Boots helps cu tomcrs look arid feel better

ban they cmi thought possibk hroughout history Bunts has pros ided high

quality healtls and be iuty piciducts at affoidable prices lrm 2006 Stefano Pessmna had

the idi to merge Alliance UniChem P1 Ic cdtng phiarmm eutical wholcsahng id

metal pharmacy group sstth Boots Gicup PL to form \lharic Boots

ciday AIb irice Boots ontniues to expand internal ionallv focusing on two main loses

of husmess phai rnacy led health and beauty retailing and phamrn iceutin al wholesaling

and distdbutiuo hiclodisig asoc iatrs arid joint enture Alliaoc Boots has moore than

3301 tetad stores in 11 countries unified ssith tine purpose help people look md feel

then best also opeiates the largest international pliammac utic al sshohsaler netss nmk

ii europe serving mote than 170000 pharmacies doclois hc alth centers and hospitals

If Walgmeetis exercises its option to acquire the rcrnasnirsg 55 percent of AIls inc Boots

the t-wo coinpaimmes together ssould become the woilci leader in plsarmac led hc dth

and wc llbemg with the latgest international phanrnaceutic aT wholesale niettsork in

the industry would also hi the laigest buvem of prescmiptidin drtigs ri the womlc

omhinmn1r strengths arid cxpc rtisc Walgmeenis and Alliance Bunts plan to hudcl

worldwide healthcame platform Ion the future that provides innoval Bess
mys

to address

global health mod ssillhting chaTlenges
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Stc ye Gorgievski used to shop at his Indian Ipolis aigreens onc month

mostly to pick up presc ript
ions Then he and hi wife had daughter and it

became weekly runs to Waigreens for diapess and baby wipes By the time

theii second and thud ughters caine along the Gorgievskis could be found

at Walgreens si veral times week buying milk over the counter children

medications and othc sentials

WaIgre ens fits the needs of the Gorgie skis grow ig family At the same time

the omp Sri iS also evolvi ig Tn Jan nary Waigreen efreshed its cut ire

68 store mdi Inapolis market with its new pilot concept called the

Well Ixperienc new cc ncept is fresh inviting and customiyed

to meet the
urine seed of tocal communities Vs dl fxperienc comhinm

products antI services th it help customers get stay arid live well creating

health antI daily liv
irig

toi that breaks the retail mold

for Steve and his family thc tic concept helped mi convenient stop
for

necessities into one destination for fresh food licalthcare and the othei day to day

needs that fuel his giowing faintly fs example when Stcve gets off work as an

officer with the Indianapolis Police lepartinent he ma find
message

from

his wife Jordan asking hin to stop by Walgreens on the wa home an casy

in and out trip for mis ing duiner ingredient In the new fresh kod section

customers can pick up vem ything they need to ci eate balanced meal from

hasics such as apples poiatoes and orions to heat andeat meal selections that

offer health alternativ to fast food And witf the Indianapolis niarkeewicle

iollout of Web Pickup ust nei can shop for these products and more

online arid pick up their oi cler in as little as an hcnir

With three daughters uric the
age

of six the Goigievskis place high importance

ciii value Steve isa convert to private brand produc ts he can find only at

Walgreens such as the Nice and md of cc arse the Walgreens brand

especially when it corns to his girls over the countei medic ation needs

tend because Jordan run sorni healthcare bu mess out of their house the

Cnegievski family is in cinique posit on to appreciate Walgieens new health

experience or both hei own family md her clients Jordan appreciates the

active role Walgneens pf aimnacists take in counselnig patients
about their

medications Pharmacists are out in ont of the countee nsome visible and

accessible for patient oonseling Many Well Lxpenience phaunacies like

the one the Gcirgievskms use also feature lake Care Clinic which otfees

affordable an essible arid high ualitv healthcame for the entire family

With ihese enhancenmient Vs
clgreenis

has gone beyond convemuenc growing

alongside the Gorgicvski fannly into tnasted resource and health pamtner for

Steve Joidan and the gins at eveny CI of their healthcaie journey



Despite diagnosis of Type diabetes 60 year oh Ken Pollard is in excellent

health lie credits erpert advice horn his dgreens pharniac rst as well is

41 years of marriage to his high school sweetheart for nahlirrg ham to maintain

an active lifestyle
that keeps ins diabetes in check When the retired park rang

isnt spending time outdooi or leading groups
of di ads antagecl city ki Ta on

horsehac rail richs across his some state of texas
you

11 find him it the
gym

with his wifc Susan he lifts veights wlnle she takcs srrcc aeio sirs lassc

But it wasnt alway that as
cy

Vi lien Ken as as liagnosecl as rth diaheres it
ycars

ago ewa short on he clthy so utinns arid long on
cluestioir

How aso mId hc

coirtiol iris blood glucose on these
icing

hnrl trail nideD Would rlishetes alas svs

onsimnie Iris thoughts as it did iii those first
ys after being diag rosed And

how asorrld hc keep complic aciomis oh diabetes like rsrc problems from stealing

away his nt tirement

oitunrateb Ken could
rely on Aar sri Willianra his Walgicen pharmrc ist in

Virstin Ic vas \aron helpcd Kerr unclcr amend how ro coirtiol In blood
sugar

through insulin and nrrediration He taught Kr about diet and net itic nr and

crunsc led rim on drug interactrcrns that oudd arise with his daily snpplcnircnrt

When Kerr spent weeks away fr home on hr 700 mile horseback trcks lit

would rrrake stops at Walgiecns whcie pharmacists ircirn It Paso to lloustmi

could pull up his pharmacy records provrdc ad ice and arswt his mestroris

lest integrmtroir arrrorrg Walgreerrs pharmacies arid with atier ta larger healmhc are

tmarrms is cnrnerstrrne of the ornp mys phaima acy health arid wellness strategy

Through expanded services irs tIn pharmacy id lake icc tnrrc such as

immrrnizationrs enlrrnrced phmarrrrac ist oummselrng chr onic care management

and health testing Walgreens healthc are professionals are poisc ci dc liver

tire
tspc of affordable accessihir cnmnmunmt caic that lies the potential to

transform patients lives and orrr nrtion hc alt lrcri systeni

Walgreens phanrnacrrs rnd clinic are already part
of arstomers daily rciritmnre

Building on those rclat onrships rhe omp any goal is ow the strat
grc

territory of Well by play mrrg
an Vt greater role iii healtlrcam

thrcruglr strong

nears on nnrmrrrrmty phanirracy ntcgrrtmon arid expanded sc rvic en As Waif met ns

arc oirmplishes that rime Kerr Prrht srds of the as or Id will bc sort cnn cnmarmorr

peoplr whcm rise abcas chm omric conclrtmons to liv active happy arrd
lmeilthry

liver

through tIre care and counseling of therm Walgreemrs plrarms ist
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Carmen Ana Fuentes ide has hecom more mpicated Her 76 year old

father arrnelo who used to us with her full time was ret ently moved to

the oral veterans hospital after suffeung massive stroke in 2011 When

shes not visiting her father every other day or catching up
with her grown

son Carmen spends her time teaching yoga and nutrition to low income

hrldren in San Juan ierto Rico With all the aring she does for other

Carmens hours to herself are re and pte ious

hats why it such good thing shes on first name basis with Jillan

Delkado head beauty lvisoi at Walgreens flagship store in Guaynabo

Jillan helps Caimnen choose cosmetics nail poish and skincare products

that help her feel like res psnipcring herself With all the time Carmen

spends helping others bec me little healtlrie she knows she can

to Walgreeris feel ttle hagprer herself And lilian goes out of her ss

to find Carmen that hit of happy in the upscale lOOK Boutique

at customer has
stony reason for choosing Walgreens am men

its the personalized service she gets from lilIan who an recommend

products that are perfect for her That one exaniple of how the Company

achieves its vision to her omne my Walgneens for
even one in America

their first choice for hr alth ar ci dail hvmg lgreens is making that vision

reality by maintaining its strong values mcl ulture continuing to invest

in its employres arid giving tlsem the tools and resources they riced to feel

like they can make diffi rence in sonreorses life

th special training in osnmietmc arid tire opportunity to work in Well

f.vpc nience stone Jillan has what shc needs to beyond typical custorticr

expenic rice arid provide an outstanding one By investing in its people arid

irstorner experierrcm WaIg eens helps Jillan and emplos ers like her rio mote

than job It helps them fulfill
purpose to help people get stay and live ell



Wagreens has long history of commitment to continuous mpi ovement md

innovation That ornmitmcnt stret lies across the Cornpan as Vi aigreens

designs and develops new stoic fo anats connect to custonie with aisard isinni
ig

applic atious and tec huologies commits to sust unable pi ac tic cc ar invests

in the development of new ideas across the he lthcarc industry mat
spii

it of

innovation also is alive every day in the Compar7 stores and einploees as

means to improve operations manage costs and develop neis souiccs of revc nue

the omnpany en olirages its employers to pcrsonally invest in that transfoi matson

by developing more efficient pn cesses and isa to sour tin rcharmdise and

supplie In donig so Walgreens is giving its einploees creative outlet foi

rcvenue generating svorkpla ideas wlule creating value for sh irchnlders iricl

valuable
xperic nrc for customers

hanks to impontant emplo cc genei atecl rinni ations team men hers like

Melanie Sipe in Denver aie able to spend more time getting to know ii cii

customers and engaging
them in efforts uuiportant to Walgrerns and its

mmrnunities For example instead of making sec eral ti ips to the stnc ktoom

to replace popular itc mc thut move quickly off the shelves Melanie now es

ness inobik rc plenishmerit cai Vi algreens ii troduced in more than 4000

toi es cai lien this yeai hese carts are organized according to the stores shelving

and stoic in the stockmnom cad1 to roll out clii ectl4 onto the sales floor

ihis singte procc is improvement nas removed avc rage
of .a honis

per
wccf

1mm the estoc king pi occcs arid upon chainis ide mollout is erpected to

ranslate to approxiniatel ltt mill on in woikload effic nc

Ihe oniry ny is also improving woik proc esses in the pharmac1 B1 cent ializirig

tasks such as data entry and phonc calls Walgreens has hr en mb to
gis

cdimmnuniiy phai macists more time to spend with ustomeis elevating thcii

svork to neis les ci of consultativr arc for paients nstnmc feedback shows

that when Walgi ccii pharmacists spend more time is ith pati mts tile me seen is

morc approac
hable That an lead to better care losei adherence to mc dic atiori

gimeris and improved he cith ciutcomes for
ptieilts

in addition to working moi eflir iently to piovide better customc eivice

of Walgreens best examples of cost savings come fiom its nstaum hility
effonts

Rocf top solar power systems geothei mal enc iry state of thc art energy

management slstems fluorcsccrit lamp metrofits and wind tuibi tes all

gneen teclunolcigies the onmpan is using
to reduce its en ug1 mnsuinptiori

ombined these ens rgy savings totaled approximately $19 nu Ilion in fisc ml

2012 B1 clanig good is hilc doing gcmod hnsinc ss thc oinpans is ibli to reduc

ts costs and its arboni footpi mt at the same time
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Five-Year Summary of Selected Consolidated Financial Data

Waigreen Co and Subsidiaries Dollars in millions except per
share and location amounts

Fiscal Year 20121 2011 201 04 2009 2008

Net Sales $71633 $72184 $67420 $63335 $59034

Cost of sales 51291 51692 48444 45722 42391

Gross Profit 20342 20492 18976 17613 16643

Selling general and administrative expenses 16878 16561 15518 14366 13202

Gain on sale of business 434

Operating Income 3464 4365 3458 3247 3441

Interest expense net 88 71 85 83 11

Earnings Before Income Tax Provision 3376 4294 3373 3164 3430

Income tax provision 1249 580 282 1158 1273

Net Earnings 2127 2714 2091 2006 2157

Per Common Share Net earnings

Basic 2.43 2.97 2.13 2.03 2.18

Diluted 2.42 2.94 2.12 2.02 2.17

Dividends declared .95 .75 .59 .48 .40

Bookvalue 19.32 16.69 15.34 14.54 13.01

Non-Current Liabilities Long-term debt 4073 2396 2389 2336 337

Deferred income taxes 545 343 318 265 150

Other non-current liabilities 1886 785 735 396 410

Assets and Equity Total Assets $33462 $27454 $26275 $25142 $22410

Shareholders Equity 18236 14847 14400 14376 12869

Return on average shareholders equity 12.9% 18.6% 14.5% 14.7% 18.0%

Locations Year-end 8385 8210 8046 7496 6934

On August 2012 the Company completed the
acquisition of

45%
of

the issued and outstanding share capital of Alliance Boots GmbH in exchange

for
cash and Company shares The Company accounts for this investment using the

equity
method

of accounting on one-month lag basis Because

the closing of this investment occurred within one month
of

the Companys fiscal year end the results of operations of Alliance Boots GmbH are

not
reflected

in the Companys reported net earnings for fiscal
2012 Transaction costs associated with the investment were $90 million pre-tax

$82 million or $11
per

diluted share after tax and
after including

the eamings per
share impact of issuing

shares to finance the investment Costs included

$69 million in
selling general and administrative expenses and $21 million of interest expense

Fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 included Rewiring for Growth
restructuring

and restructuring-related charges of $45 million pre-tax $28 million
after tax

$106 million pre-tax $67 million after tax and $252 million pre-tax $160 million after tax respectively Charges included in cost of
sales for fiscal

2011 2010 and 2009 were $3 million 40 million and $95 million respectively Selling general and administrative expenses related to the initiative

for fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 were $42 million $66 million and $157 million respectively
Fiscal 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 included expenses

related to Customer Centric Retailing store conversions of $15 million $84 million $45 million and $5 million respectively all of which were included

in selling general and administrative expenses

In
fiscal 2011 the Company sold its pharmacy benefit management business Walgreens Health Initiatives Inc to Catalyst Health Solutions Inc

and recorded
pre-tax gain of $434 million $273 million or $30 per diluted share after tax

Includes results of
Duane Reade

operations
since the

April
2010

acquisition
date

Fiscal 2010 included deferred tax charge of $43 million related to the
repeal of tax benefit for

the Medicare Part subsidy for retiree benefits

Fiscal 2008 included
positive adjustment of

$79 million pre-tax $50 million after tax relating to an adjustment of
the Companys vacation liability

Locations include drugstores worksite health and wellness centers infission
and

respiratory
services facilities specialty pharmacies and mail service

facilities
The

foregoing
does not include locations of unconsolidated partially

owned entities such as Alliance Boots GmbH of which the Company

owns 45%
of

the outstanding share
capital
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations

and Financial Condition

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of

operations should be read together with the financial statements and the related

notes included elsewhere herein This discussion contains forward-looking

statements that involve risks and uncertainties Our actual results may differ

materially from those discussed in forward-looking statements Factors that

might cause difference include but are not limited to those discussed

under Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements below and in

Item 1A Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K References herein

to Walgreens the Company we us or our refer to Waigreen Co and

its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements and does not

include unconsolidated partially owned entities such as Alliance Boots GmbH

of which we own 45% of the outstanding share capital except as otherwise

indicated or the context otherwise requires

Introduction

Waigreens is principally retail drugstore chain that sells prescription and non

prescription drugs and general merchandise General merchandise includes among

other things household items convenience and fresh foods personal care beauty

care photofinishing and candy Customers can have prescriptions filled in retail

pharmacies as well as through the mail and customers may also place orders by

telephone and online At August 31 2012 we operated 8385 locations in 50 states

the District of Columbia Guam and Puerto Rico Total locations do not include

360 Take Care Clinics that are operated primarily within other Walgreens locations

or locations of unconsolidated partially owned entities such as Alliance Boots GmbH

Number of Locations

Location Type 2012 2011 2010

Drugstores 7930 7761 7562

Worksite Health and Wellness Centers 366 355 367

Infusion and Respiratory Services Facilities 76 83 101

Specialty Pharmacies 11 14

Mail Service Facilities

Total 8385 8210 8046

The drugstore industry is highly competitive In addition to other drugstore chains

independent drugstores and mail order prescription providers we compete with

various other retailers including grocery stores convenience stores mass merchants

online pharmacies warehouse clubs and dollar stores

Our sales gross profit margin and gross profit dollars are impacted by among

other things both the percentage of prescriptions that we fill that are generic

and the rate at which new generic drugs are introduced to the market In general

generic versions of drugs generate lower total sales dollars per prescription but

higher gross profit margins and gross profit dollars as compared with patent-

protected brand name drugs The positive impact on gross profit margins and

gross profit dollars typically has been significant in the first several months after

generic version of drug is first allowed to compete with the branded version

which is generally referred to as generic conversion In any given year the

number of major brand name drugs that undergo conversion from branded to

generic status can increase or decrease which can have significant impact on

our sales gross profit margins and gross profit dollars And because any number

of factors outside of our control or ability to foresee can affect timing for generic

conversion we face substantial uncertainty in predicting when such conversions

will occur and what effect they will have on particular future periods

The long-term outlook for prescription utilization is strong due in part to the aging

population the increasing utilization of generic drugs the continued development

of innovative drugs that improve quality of life and control healthcare costs and

the expansion of healthcare insurance coverage under the Patient Protection

and Affordable Care Act signed into law in 2010 the ACA The ACA seeks to

reduce federal spending by altering the Medicaid reimbursement formula AMP
for multi-source drugs and when implemented is expected to reduce Medicaid

reimbursements State Medicaid programs are also expected to continue to seek

reductions in reimbursements independent of AMP In addition we continuously

face reimbursement pressure from pharmacy benefit management PBM companies

health maintenance organizations managed care organizations and other commercial

third party payers and our agreements with these payers are regularly subject to

expiration termination or renegotiation

Following our June 21 2011 announcement that contract renewal negotiations

with pharmacy benefit manager Express Scripts Inc Express Scripts had been

unsuccessful Walgreens exited the Express Scripts pharmacy provider network as

of January 2012 On July 19 2012 Walgreens and Express Scripts announced

their entry into new multiyear agreement pursuant to which Walgreens began

participating in the broadest Express Scripts retail pharmacy provider network

available to Express Scripts clients as of September 15 2012 From January

2012 until September 14 2012 however Express Scripts network did not include

Walgreens pharmacies Express Scripts in its capacity as pharmacy benefits

manager processed approximately 88 million prescriptions filled by Walgreens in

fiscal 2011 representing approximately $5.3 billion of our fiscal 2011 net sales

Compared to fiscal 2011 we estimate that the negative impact of not being part

of the Express Scripts Inc pharmacy provider network net of associated cost

reductions was $0.21 per diluted sharg

We expect the positive impact of our new agreement with Express Scripts will be

incremental over time particularly over the first several quarters after September 15

2012 While we cannot predict with certainty which Express Scripts clients will

choose to include us in their pharmacy networks after September 15 2012

we expect that our pharmacies will participate in the pharmacy networks of most

clients for which Express Scripts serves as pharmacy benefit manager However

one substantial client of Express Scripts the United States Department of Defense

TRICARE program has announced that Walgreens will continue to not be
part

of

its pharmacy network and will be designated as non-network pharmacy provider

for TRICARE beneficiaries Most of the patients we served in calendar 2011 who

participated in plan for which Express Scripts served as pharmacy benefit manager

transitioned to another pharmacy after we exited the Express Scripts network on

January 2012 We expect to incur marketing and other costs in connection with

efforts to regain former
patients and attract new patients covered by plans for

which we become network pharmacy provider as result of our agreement

with Express Scripts

Ultimately the magnitude and timing of the impact on our financial results of

rejoining the Express Scripts retail pharmacy provider network will depend on our

ability
to regain former patients and attract new patients covered by existing and

new Express Scripts clients however we cannot predict with certainty what level

of business we will achieve as result of
rejoining the Express Scripts retail

pharmacy provider network in any particular future time period We also intend to

continue to pursue initiatives seeking to align our costs with anticipated business

levels and requirements over time Rejoining the Express Scripts retail pharmacy

provider network is expected to positively affect our net sales net earnings and

cash flows over time relative to the levels we would otherwise achieve if we were

not in the Express Scripts network and to mitigate the adverse effects related

to our non-participation in the Express Scripts retail pharmacy provider network

during the period from January 2012 through September 14 2012

See Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Total front-end sales have grown due to sales gains in existing stores acquired

stores and new store openings Front-end sales have increased in the

non-prescription drugs beer and wine beauty convenience and fresh foods

and photofinishing categories

Periodically we make strategic acquisitions and investments that fit our long-term

growth objectives Consideration is given to retail health and wellbeing enterprises

and other potential acquisitions and investments that provide unique opportunities

and fit our business objectives On August 2012 we completed the initial investment

contemplated by the Purchase and Option Agreement dated June 18 2012 by and

among Waigreens Alliance Boots GmbH and AB Acquisitions Holdings Limited the

Purchase and Option Agreement which resulted in our acquisition of 45% of
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the issued and outstanding share capital of Alliance Boots GmbH in exchange

for $4025 billion in cash and 83392670 shares of Walgreens common stock

Step Alliance Boots is the largest retail pharmacy health and daily living

destination in Europe with over 3330 retail locations Its pharmaceutical wholesaling

and distribution businesses together with associates and joint ventures operate

over 370 distribution centers supplying more than 170000 pharmacies doctors

health centers and hospitals We account for our 45% investment in Alliance Boots

using the equity method of accounting on one-month lag basis Because the

closing of this investment occurred within one month of the Companys fiscal

year end the results of operations of Alliance Boots GmbH are not reflected in the

Companys reported net earnings for the fiscal quarter or year ended August 31

2012 Our 45% proportionate interest in the profit of Alliance Boots GmbH for the

three-month period ended October 31 2012 will be reflected in the Companys

reported net earnings for the fiscal quarter ended November 30 2012

The Purchase and Option Agreement also provides among other things and subject

to the satisfaction or waiver of specified conditions that we will have the right but

not the obligation to acquire the remaining 55% interest in Alliance Boots GmbH

in exchange for 3133 billion in cash payable in British pounds sterling and

144333468 shares of Walgreens common stock subject to certain specified

adjustments second step transaction If Walgreens exercises the call option

in certain limited circumstances Walgreens may be required to make the entire

second step transaction payment in cash The call option is exercisable by us

in our sole discretion at any time during the period beginning February 2015 and

ending August 2015 In addition in certain specified cases if Walgreens does not

exercise the call option or Walgreens has exercised the call option but the second

step transaction does not close Walgreens may be required to return to the sellers

an approximately 3% interest in Alliance Boots GmbH in exchange for nominal

amount Walgreens initial investment and the call option excludes the Alliance Boots

minority interest in Galenica Ltd Galenica The Alliance Boots investment in

Galenica continues to be legally owned by Alliance Boots for the benefit of Alliance

Boots shareholders other than Walgreens Additional information regarding our

investment in Alliance Boots GmbH is available in our Current Reports on Form 8-K

filed on June 19 2012 and August 2012 as amended by the Form 8-K/A filed on

September 10 2012 The amendment to our August 2012 Form 8-K filed on

September 10 2012 includes as exhibits thereto Alliance Boots audited consolidated

financial statements for the years ended March 31 2012 2011 and 2010 prepared

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board and unaudited pro forma consolidated

financial information related to our 45% investment in Alliance Boots GmbH

Other strategic acquisitions in fiscal 2012 included certain assets of BioScrip

Inc.s BioScrip community specialty pharmacies and centralized specialty and

mail services pharmacy businesses which advance community pharmacy and

bring additional specialty pharmacy products and services closer to patients The

Company also grew its infusion business in select markets through the acquisition

of Crescent Pharmacy Holdings LLC Crescent On September 17 2012 the

Company completed its acquisition of USA Drug which includes 144 drugstore

locations operating under the USA Drug Super Drug Mays Drug Med-X and

Drug Warehouse names Significant acquisitions in prior years include the purchase of

drugstore.com inc in fiscal 2011 which enhanced our online presence and the

acquisition of Duane Reade Holdings Inc and Duane Reade Shareholders LLC

Duane Reade in fiscal 2010 which included all of the Duane Reade stores in

the New York City metropolitan area

All Company sales during the last three fiscal years occurred within the United

States Puerto Rico and Guam There were no export sales Investments accounted

for under the equity method are recorded initially at cost and subsequently adjusted

for the Companys share of the net income or loss and cash contributions and

distributions to or from these entities The Companys investment in Alliance Boots

which closed on August 2012 and the related second step purchase option

were recorded as assets with $7.0 billion aggregate value on the Companys

August 31 2012 Consolidated Balance Sheet which represented 30.9% of the

Companys long-lived assets as of that date See Note to Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information

Restructuring Charges

In 2008 we announced series of strategic initiatives approved by the Board of

Directors to enhance shareholder value One of these initiatives was program

known as Rewiring for Growth which was designed to reduce cost and improve

productivity through strategic sourcing of indirect spend reducing corporate

overhead and work throughout our stores rationalization of inventory categories

and realignment of pharmacy operations These initiatives were completed in the

fourth quarter of fiscal 2011

We recorded $42 million of pre-tax charges in selling general and administrative

expenses in fiscal 2011 associated with our Rewiring for Growth program and

$66 million in fiscal 2010 In addition as part of our restructuring efforts

we sold an incremental amount of inventory below traditional retail prices

The dilutive effect of these sales on gross profit for fiscal years 2011 and 2010

were $3 million and $21 million respectively

We realized total savings related to Rewiring for Growth of approximately $1 .1 billion

in fiscal 2011 compared to our base year of fiscal 2008 Selling general and

administrative expenses realized total savings of $953 million while cost of sales

benefited by approximately $122 million The savings were primarily the result of

reduced store labor and personnel and expense reductions

Additionally as part of our Customer Centric Retailing CCR initiative we have

modified our store format to enhance category layouts and adjacencies shelf

heights and sight lines and brand and private brand assortments all of which

were designed to
positively impact the shopper experience This initiative was

completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 In total we converted 5843 stores

and opened 559 new stores with the CCR format In the first quarter of fiscal

2012 we incurred $33 million in total program costs of which $15 million was

included in selling general and administrative expenses and $18 million in capital

costs In fiscal 2011 we incurred $144 million in total program costs of which

$84 million was included in selling general and administrative expenses and

$60 million in capital costs In fiscal 2010 we incurred $71 million in total program

costs of which $45 million was included in selling general and administrative

expenses and $26 million in capital costs

Operating Statistics

Percentage Increases

Decreases

Fiscal Year 2012 2011 2010

Net Sales 0.8 7.1 6.4

Net Earnings 21.6 29.8 4.2

Comparable Drugstore Sales 3.6 3.3 .6

Prescription
Sales 3.1 6.3 6.3

Comparable Drugstore Prescription Sales 6.1 3.3 2.3

Front-End Sales 3.6 8.5 6.8

Comparable Drugstore Front-End Sales 0.6 3.3 0.5

Gross Profit 0.7 8.0 7.7

Selling General and Administrative Expenses 1.9 6.7 8.0

Percent to Net Sales

Fiscal Year 2012 2011 2010

Gross Margin 28.4 28.4 28.1

Selling General and Administrative Expenses 23.6 23.0 23.0

Other Statistics

Fiscal Year 2012 2011 2010

Prescription Sales as of Net Sales 63.2 64.7 65.2

Third Party Sales as of Total Prescription Sales 95.6 95.6 95.3

Number of Prescriptions in millions 664 718 695

Comparable Prescription IncreaseDecrease 8.4 .5 3.3

30-Day Equivalent Prescriptions in millions 784 819 778

Comparable 30-Day Equivalent Prescription

lncreaseDecrease 5.1 3.7 4.5

Total Number of Locations 8385 8210 8046

Includes the adjustment to convert prescriptions greater
than 84 days to the equivalent

of three 30-day prescriptions
This adjustment reflects the fact that these prescriptions

include approximately three times the amount of product days supplied compared to

normal prescription
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations

and Financial Condition
continued

Results of Operations

Fiscal 2012 net earnings decreased 21.6% to $2.1 billion or $2.42 per diluted

share versus last years earnings of $2.7 billion or $2.94 per diluted share The

decrease was primarily attributable to lower sales the sale of our pharmacy benefit

management business in fiscal 2011 and higher selling general and administrative

expenses as percentage of sales Included in fiscal 2012 net earnings and net

earnings per diluted share respectively was $195 million or $.22 per diluted share

from the years LIFO provision and $161 million or $18 per diluted share in

acquisition-related amortization Fiscal 2012 net earnings and net earnings per

diluted share respectively also included $82 million or $.1 per diluted share of

transaction costs and interest some of which are non-deductible for tax purposes

and share issuance impact which affected net earnings per diluted share only

related to the Alliance Boots transaction Included in fiscal 2011 net earnings and

net earnings per diluted share respectively were $273 million or $30 per diluted

share associated with the.gain on the sale of Walgreens Health Initiatives Inc

$138 million or $.1 per diluted share in acquisition-related amortization and

$131 million or $14 per diluted share from the years LIFO provision

Net sales decreased by 0.8% to $71.6 billion in fiscal 2012 compared to increases

of 7.1% in 2011 and 6.4% in 2010 The acquisitions of BioScrip assets and

drugstore.com increased total sales by 1.0% in fiscal 2012 Net sales in fiscal 2012

were negatively impacted by our strategic decision to no longer be part of the

Express Scripts pharmacy provider network partially offset by sales gains in existing

stores and added sales from new stores each of which included an indeterminate

amount of market-driven price changes Sales in comparable drugstores were down

3.6% in 2012 and up 3.3% and .6% in fiscal years 2011 and 2010 respectively

Comparable drugstores are defined as those that have been open for at least twelve

consecutive months without closure for seven or more consecutive days and without

major remodel or natural disaster in the past twelve months Remodels associated

with our CCR initiative are not considered major and therefore do not affect comparable

drugstore results Relocated and acquired stores are not included as comparable

stores for the first twelve months after the relocation or acquisition We operated

8385 locations 7930 drugstores at August 31 2012 compared to 8210 locations

7761 drugstores at August 31 2011 and 8046 locations 7562 drugstores

at August 31 2010

Prescription sales decreased 3.1% in 2012 compared to increases of 6.3% in 2011

and 6.3% in 2010 Comparable drugstore prescription
sales were down 6.1% in

2012 compared to increases of 3.3% in 2011 and 2.3% in 2010 Prescription sales

were negatively impacted by our strategic decision to no longer be part of the

Express Scripts pharmacy provider network Prescription sales as percent of total

net sales were 63.2% in 2012 64.7% in 2011 and 65.2% in 2010 The effect of

generic drugs which have lower retail price replacing brand name drugs reduced

prescription sales by 3.5% for 2012 2.4% for 2011 and 2.2% for 2010 while the

effect on total sales was 1.9% for 2012 1.4% for 2011 and 1.3% for 2010 Third

party sales where reimbursement is received from managed care organizations the

government employers or private insurers were 95.6% of prescription sales in 2012

and 2011 and 95.3% in 2010 We receive market-driven reimbursements from third

party payers number of which typically reset in January The total number of pre

scriptions filled including immunizations was approximately 664 million in 2012

718 million in 2011 and 695 million in 2010
Prescriptions adjusted to 30-day

equivalents were 784 million in 2012 819 million in 2011 and 778 million in 2010

Front-end sales increased 3.6% in 2012 8.5% in 2011 and 6.8% in 2010 The

increase over the prior year was due in part to new store openings and improved

sales related to non-prescription drugs beer and wine beauty convenience and

fresh foods and photofinishing products Front-end sales were 36.8% of total sales

in fiscal 2012 35.3% of total sales in fiscal 2011 and 34.8% of total sales in

fiscal 2010 Comparable drugstore front-end sales increased 0.6% in 2012 3.3% in

2011 and 0.5% in 2010 The increase in fiscal 2012 comparable front-end sales was

primarily due to the beer and wine non-prescription drugs beauty and photofinishing

categories which were partially offset by decreased sales in household products

Gross margin as percent of sales was 28.4% in fiscal 2012 and 2011 Gross

margin in fiscal 2012 was positively impacted by higher front-end margins in the

household items convenience and fresh foods and non-prescription drug categories

but offset by lower retail pharmacy margins where lower market-driven reimburse

ments and higher provision for LIFO more than offset the impact of new generics

including the generic Lipitor Gross margin as percent of sales was 28.4% in fiscal

2011 as compared to 28.1% in fiscal 2010 Overall margins were positively impacted

by higher front-end margins in the non-prescription drug beauty personal care

and convenience and fresh food categories Retail pharmacy margins were also

higher as the positive effect of generic drug sales more than offset market-driven

reimbursements and the write-down of flu shot inventory These positive effects

were partially offset by higher provision for LIFO

Gross profit dollars in fiscal 2012 decreased 0.7% over the prior year The

decrease is primarily attributed to lower sales volumes and higher provision for

LIFO Gross
profit

dollars in fiscal 2011 increased 8.0% over fiscal 2010 The

increase is attributed to higher sales volumes and increased front-end and retail

pharmacy margins

We use the last-in first-out LIFO method of inventory valuation The LIFO provision

is dependent upon inventory levels inflation rates and merchandise mix The effective

LIFO inflation rates were 3.30% in 2012 239% in 2011 and 1.70% in 2010

which resulted in charges to cost of sales of $309 million in 2012 $208 million

in 2011 and $140 million in 2010 Inflation on prescription inventory was 10.04%

in 2012 4.64% in 2011 and 4.72% in 2010 As result of declining inventory

levels the fiscal 2012 LIFO provision was reduced by $268 million of LIFO liquidation

In fiscal 2010 we experienced deflation in some non-prescription inventories

The anticipated LIFO inflation rate for fiscal 2013 is 2.50%

Selling general and administrative expenses were 23.6% of sales in fiscal 2012

as compared to 23.0% in 2011 The increase was primarily due to higher occupancy

expense drugstore.com expenses including costs associated with the acquisition

and integration investments in strategic initiatives and capabilities expenses

associated with our investment in Alliance Boots GmbH and store direct expense

which were partially offset by lower expenses associated with our CCR remodeling

program which was completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 Selling general

and administrative expenses as percentage of sales remained at 23.0% in

2011 as compared to fiscal 2010 Increased corporate costs and Duane Reade

operational expenses were offset by lower Rewiring for Growth costs and

incremental savings from our Rewiring for Growth activities primarily from expense

reduction initiatives and reduced store payroll as percentage of sales

Selling general and administrative expense dollars increased $317 million or 1.9%

over fiscal 2011 Operating and integration costs related to drugstore.com added

0.6% and costs associated with our investment in Alliance Boots GmbH added

0.4% The remaining increase was primarily attributed to new stores Selling

general and administrative expense dollars in fiscal 2011 increased 6.7% over

fiscal 2010 The increase was attributed to higher comparable store spending

new stores and the acquisition of Duane Reade

Interest was net expense of $88 million in fiscal 2012 $71 million in fiscal 2011

and $85 million in fiscal 2010 Interest expense for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 is

net of $9 million $10 million and $12 million respectively that was capitalized to

construction projects In fiscal 2012 we incurred $21 million in interest expense on

the bridge term loan facility in conjunction with our investment in Alliance Boots GmbH

This was partially offset by lower interest expense as result of the additional

$500 million in fixed to variable interest rate swaps $250 million of which

was entered into in May 2012 and $250 million of which was entered into in

March 2011 The reduction in net interest expense from fiscal 2010 to fiscal 2011

was attributed to reduced interest rates associated with our $1.3 billion of fixed

to variable interest rate swaps entered into in January 2010

The effective income tax rate was 37.0% for fiscal 2012 36.8% for 2011 and 38.0%

for 2010 The increase in the effective tax rate from fiscal 2011 was attributed to

certain non-deductible transaction costs associated with the investment in Alliance

Boots GmbH Fiscal 2010 included $43 million charge to deferred taxes for the

repeal of the tax benefit for the Medicare Part subsidy for retiree benefits

We anticipate an effective tax rate of approximately 37.0% in fiscal 2013 before

incorporating the investment in Alliance Boots GmbH
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents were $1 .3 billion at August 31 2012 compared to

$1 .6 billion at August 31 2011 Short-term investment objectives are to minimize

risk maintain liquidity and maximize after-tax yields To attain these objectives

investment limits are placed on the amount type and issuer of securities

Investments are principally in U.S Treasury market funds

On October 14 2009 our Board of Directors approved long-term capital policy

to maintain strong balance sheet and financial flexibility reinvest in our core

strategies invest in
strategic opportunities that reinforce our core strategies

and

meet return requirements and return surplus cash flow to shareholders in the form

of dividends and share repurchases over the long term

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4.4 billion at August 31 2012

compared to $3.6 billion year ago The increase was primarily as result of changes

in working capital balances including reduced inventory levels Cash provided by

operations is the
principal source of funds for expansion investments acquisitions

remodeling programs dividends to shareholders and stock repurchases

Net cash used for investing activities was $5.9 billion versus $1 .5 billion last year

Additions to property and equipment were $1 .6 billion compared to $1.2 billion last

year In fiscal 2012 we added total of 266 locations 175 net compared to last

years 297 locations 164 net There were 34 owned locations added during the

year and 41 under construction at August 31 2012 versus 62 owned locations

added and 44 under construction as of August 31 2011

Infusion and

Work- Respiratory Specialty Mail

Drugstores sites Services Pharmacy Service Total

August 31 2010 7562 367 101 14 8046

New/Relocated 237 21 261

Acquired 32 36

Closed/Replaced 70 33 23 133

August 31 2011 7761 355 83 8210

New/Relocated 169 36 212

Acquired 43 10 54

Closed/Replaced 43 25 22 91

August 31 2012 7930 366 76 11 8385

Investing activities in 2012 include the August 2012 purchase of 45% equity interest

in Alliance Boots GmbH for $7.0 billion of which $4.0 billion was cash This investment

is accounted for as an equity method investment Business acquisitions this year were

$490 million versus $630 million in fiscal 2011 Business acquisitions in fiscal 2012

included certain assets from BioScrips community specialty pharmacies and centralized

specialty and mail services pharmacy businesses for $144 million plus inventory the

purchase of Crescent Pharmacy Holdings LLC an infusion pharmacy business for

$73 million net of assumed cash and selected other assets primarily prescription

files Business acquisitions in 2011 included the purchase of drugstore.com inc for

$398 million net of assumed cash $29 million of infusion and respiratory services

assets and selected other assets primarily prescription files In fiscal 2011 we sold

our pharmacy benefit management business Walgreens Health Initiatives Inc WHI
to Catalyst Health Solutions Inc Catalyst and recorded net cash proceeds of

$442 million In fiscal 2012 we paid $45 million to Catalyst which was the result of

working capital adjustment in accordance with the June 2011 sales agreement On

July 2012 we entered into an agreement to purchase regional drugstore chain

in the mid-South region of the United States from Stephen LaFrance Holdings Inc

and members of the LaFrance family for $438 million subject to adjustment in certain

circumstances the USA Drug transacUon The transaction included 144 stores operated

under the USA Drug Super Drug Mays Med-X and Drug Warehouse names

The transaction closed subsequent to our fiscal year end on September 201

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2013 are expected to be between $1 .6 billion and

$1 .8 billion excluding business acquisitions joint ventures and prescription file

purchases although the actual amount may vary depending upon variety of factors

including among other things the timing of implementation of certain capital projects

We expect new drugstore organic growth of approximately 1.5 to 2.5 percent in fiscal

2013 During fiscal 2012 we added total of 212 locations of which 169 were

new or relocated drugstores We are continuing to relocate stores to more convenient

and profitable freestanding locations

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1.2 billion compared to the prior years

net cash use of $2.4 billion We borrowed $3.0 billion under 364-day bridge term

loan facility in connection with the Alliance Boots GmbH investment which borrowings

were repaid subsequent to year end using net proceeds from the September 2012

public offering of unsecured notes described below We repurchased shares totaling

$1 .2 billion in fiscal 2012 $1.2 billion in conjunction with our share buyback programs

and $40 million to support the needs of the employee stock plans In the prior year

we repurchased shares totaling $2.0 billion $1.8 billion in conjunction with our share

buyback programs and $244 million to support the needs of the employee stock

plans We had proceeds related to employee stock plans
of $165 million compared to

$235 million last year Cash dividends paid were $787 million versus $647 million

year ago On June 19 2012 we announced an increase in the quarterly dividend

to 27.5 cents per share from the previous rate of 22.5 cents per share The increase

raises the annual dividend rate from 90 cents per share to $1.10 per share

In connection with our capital policy our Board of Directors has authorized several share

repurchase programs and set long-term dividend payout ratio target between 30 and

35 percent of net earnings The 2009 and 2011 stock repurchase programs which

were both completed in fiscal 2011 allowed for the repurchase of up to $2.0 billion

and $1.0 billion of the Companys common stock respectively Additionally on July 13

2011 our Board of Directors authorized the 2012 stock repurchase program

which allows for the repurchase of up to $2.0 billion of the Companys common

stock prior to its expiration on December 31 2015 Activity related to these programs

was as follows In millions

Fiscal Year Ended 2012 2011 2010

2009 stock repurchase program 360 $1640

201 stock repurchase program 000

2012 stock repurchase program 1151 424

$1151 $1784 $1640

We determine the timing and amount of repurchases from time to time based on

our assessment of various factors including prevailing market conditions alternate

uses of capital liquidity the economic environment and other factors We anticipate

that the pace of any future share repurchase activity may be significantly curtailed

from the levels achieved in the preceding two years due to the debt levels incurred for

the investment in Alliance Boots GmbH The
timing

and amount of these purchases

may change at any time and from time to time The Company has repurchased

and may from time to time in the future repurchase shares on the open market

through Rule 0b5-1 plans which enable company to repurchase shares at times

when it otherwise might be precluded from doing so under insider trading laws

We had no commercial paper outstanding at August 31 2012 In connection with

our commercial paper program we maintain two unsecured backup syndicated

lines of credit that total $1.35 billion The first $500 million facility expires on

July 20 2015 and allows for the issuance of up to $250 million in letters of credit

The second $850 million facility expires on July 23 2017 and allows for the issuance

of up to $200 million in letters of credit The issuance of letters of credit under either

of these facilities reduces available borrowings Our ability to access these facilities

is subject to our compliance with the terms and conditions of the credit facility

including financial covenants The covenants require us to maintain certain financial

ratiàs related to minimum net worth and priority debt along with limitations on the

sale of assets and purchases of investments At August 31 2012 we were in

compliance with all such covenants The Company pays facility fee to the financing

banks to keep these lines of credit active At August 31 2012 there were no

letters of credit issued against these facilities and we do not anticipate any future

letters of credit to be issued against these facilities

As of October 19 2012 our credit ratings were

Long-Term Commercial

Rating Agency Debt Rating Paper Rating Outlook

Moodys Baal P-2 Negative

Standard Poors BBB A-2 Stable
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and Financial Condition continued

In assessing our credit strength both Moodys and Standard Poors consider

our business model capital structure financial policies and financial statements

Our credit ratings impact our borrowing costs access to capital markets and

operating lease costs

On September 13 2012 we completed the issuance and sale via an underwritten

public offering of $4.0 billion aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes

of varying maturities and interest rates the majority of which are fixed rate See Note

16 of Notes to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements Approximately

$3.0 billion of the net proceeds of the offering was used to refinance the 364-day

bridge term loan described above and approximately $438 million was used to pay

the purchase price upon the closing of the USA Drug transaction described above

in September 2012

Pursuant to our Purchase and Option Agreement with Alliance Boots GmbH we have

the right but not the obligation to purchase the remaining 55% interest in Alliance

Boots during the period beginning February 2015 and ending August 2015

If we exercise this call option we would subject to the terms and conditions of such

agreement be obligated
to make cash payment of 3.1 33 billion equivalent to

approximately $5.0 billion based on exchange rates as of August 31 2012 and

issue approximately 144.3 million shares of our common stock with the amount

and form of such consideration being subject to adjustment in certain circumstances

including if the volume weighted average price of our common stock is below

$31.18 per share during period shortly
before the closing of the second step

transaction We also would assume the then-outstanding debt of Alliance Boots

upon the closing of the second step transaction

Commitments and Contingencies

The information set forth in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements is

incorporated herein by reference

Critical Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include amounts

based on managements prudent judgments and estimates Actual results may

differ from these estimates Management believes that any reasonable deviation

from those judgments and estimates would not have material impact on our

consolidated financial position or results of operations To the extent that the

estimates used differ from actual results however adjustments to the statement

of comprehensive income and corresponding balance sheet accounts would be

necessary These adjustments would be made in future statements Some of the

more significant estimates include goodwill and other intangible asset impairment

allowance for doubtful accounts vendor allowances asset impairments liability for

closed locations liability for insurance claims cost of sales and income taxes

We use the following methods to determine our estimates

Goodwill and other intangible asset impairment Goodwill and other indefinite-lived

intangible
assets are not amortized but are evaluated for impairment annually

during the fourth quarter or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances

change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below

its carrying value As part of our impairment analysis for each reporting unit we

engage third party appraisal firm to assist in the determination of estimated fair

value for each unit This determination includes estimating the fair value using both

the income and market approaches The income approach requires management

to estimate number of factors for each reporting unit including projected future

operating results economic projections anticipated future cash flows and discount

rates The market approach estimates fair value using comparable marketplace fair

value data from within comparable industry grouping

The determination of the fair value of the reporting units and the allocation of that

value to individual assets and liabilities within those reporting units requires us to

make significant estimates and assumptions These estimates and assumptions

primarily include but are not limited to the selection of appropriate peer group

companies control premiums appropriate for acquisitions in the industries in

which we compete the discount rate terminal growth rates and forecasts of

revenue operating income depreciation and amortization and capital expenditures

The allocation requires several analyses to determine fair value of assets and

liabilities including among other things purchased prescription files customer

relationships and trade names Although we believe our estimates of fair value

are reasonable actual financial results could differ from those estimates due to the

inherent uncertainty involved in making such estimates Changes in assumptions

concerning future financial results or other underlying assumptions could have

significant impact on either the fair value of the reporting units the amount

of the goodwill impairment charge or both

We also compared the sum of the estimated fair values of the reporting units to

the Companys total value as implied by the market value of the Companys equity

and debt securities This comparison indicated that in total our assumptions

and estimates were reasonable However future declines in the overall market

value of the Companys equity and debt securities may indicate that the fair

value of one or more reporting units has declined below its carrying value

One measure of the sensitivity of the amount of goodwill impairment charges to

key assumptions is the amount by which each reporting unit passed fair value

exceeds the carrying amount or failed the carrying
amount exceeds fair value

the first step of the goodwill impairment test Our reporting units fair values

exceeded their carrying amounts by less than 10% to more than 140% The fair

value of one reporting unit exceeded its carrying amount by less than 10%

Goodwill allocated to this reporting unit was $255 million at May 31 2012 For

this reporting unit relatively modest changes in the Companys key assumptions

may have resulted in the recognition of goodwill impairment charge Our Long

Term Care Pharmacys goodwill was impaired by $16 million in fiscal 2010 as

result of the asset sale agreement with Omnicare Inc which was signed on

August 31 2010

Generally changes in estimates of expected future cash flows would have similar

effect on the estimated fair value of the reporting unit That is 1% change

in estimated future cash flows would change the estimated fair value of the

reporting unit by approximately 1% The estimated long-term rate of net sales

growth can have significant impact on the estimated future cash flows and

therefore the fair value of each reporting unit For the reporting unit whose fair

value exceeded carrying value by less than 10% 1% decrease in the long-term

net sales growth rate would have resulted in the reporting unit failing the first

step of the goodwill impairment test Of the other key assumptions that impact

the estimated fair values most reporting units have the greatest sensitivity to

changes in the estimated discount rate 1% increase in estimated discount

rate for the reporting unit whose fair value exceeded carrying value by 10% or

less would also have resulted in the reporting unit failing step one The Company

believes that its estimates of future cash flows and discount rates are reasonable

but future changes in the underlying assumptions could differ due to the inherent

uncertainty in making such estimates

We have not made any material changes to the method of evaluating goodwill

and intangible asset impairments during the last three years Based on current

knowledge we do not believe there is reasonable likelihood that there will be

material change in the estimates or assumptions used to determine impairment

Allowance for doubtful accounts The provision for bad debt is based on both specific

receivables and historic write-off percentages We have not made any material

changes to the method of estimating our allowance for doubiful accounts during

the last three years Based on current knowledge we do not believe there is

reasonable likelihood that there will be material change in the estimates or

assumptions used to determine the allowance

Vendor allowances Vendor allowances are principally received as result of

purchases sales or promotion of vendors products Allowances are generally

recorded as reduction of inventory and are recognized as reduction of cost

of sales when the related merchandise is sold Those allowances received for

promoting vendors products are offset against advertising expense and result

in reduction of selling general and administrative expenses to the extent of

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
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advertising incurred with the excess treated as reduction of inventory costs

We have not made any material changes to the method of estimating our vendor

allowances during the last three years Based on current knowledge we do not

believe there is reasonable likelihood that there will be material change in

the estimates or assumptions used to determine vendor allowances

Asset itnpairments The impairment of long-lived
assets is assessed based upon

both qualitative and quantitative factors including years of operation and expected

future cash flows and tested for impairment annually or whenever events or

circumstances indicate that certain asset may be impaired If the future cash

flows reveal that the carrying value of the asset group may not be recoverable

an impairment charge is immediately recorded We have not made any material

changes to the method of estimating our asset impairments during the last three

years Based on current knowledge we do not believe there is reasonable

likelihood that there will be material change in the estimates or assumptions

used to determine asset impairments

Liability for closed locationsThe liability is based on the present value of future

rent obligations and other related costs net of estimated sublease rent to the

first lease option date We have not made any material changes to the method

of estimating our liability for closed locations during the last three years

Based on current knowledge we do not believe there is reasonable likelihood

that there will be material change in the estimates or assumptions used to

determine the liability

Liability for insurance claimsThe liability for insurance claims is recorded based

on estimates for claims incurred and is not discounted The provisions are

estimated in
part by considering historical claims experience demographic

factors and other actuarial assumptions We have not made any material changes

to the method of estimating our liability for insurance claims during the last three

years Based on current knowledge we do not believe there is reasonable

likelihood that there will be material change in the estimates or assumptions

used to determine the liability

Cost of salesDrugstore cost of sales is derived based on point-of-sale scanning

information with an estimate for shrinkage and adjusted based on periodic inventory

counts Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market determined by the

last-in first-out LIFO method We have not made any material changes to the

method of estimating cost of sales during the last three years Based on current

knowledge we do not believe there is reasonable likelihood that there will be

material change in the estimates or assumptions used to determine cost of sales

Equity method investments We use the equity method to account for investments

in companies if the investment provides the ability to exercise significant influence

but not control over operating and financial policies of the investee Our proportionate

share of the net income or loss of these companies is included in consolidated

net earnings Judgment regarding the level of influence over each equity method

investment includes considering key factors such as our ownership interest

representation on the board of directors participation in policy-making decisions

and material intercompany transactions

Income taxes We are subject to routine income tax audits that occur periodically in

the normal course of business U.S federal state local and foreign tax authorities raise

questions regarding our tax filing positions including the timing and amount of deductions

and the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions In evaluating the tax

benefits associated with our various tax filing positions we record tax benefit for

uncertain tax positions using the highest cumulative tax benefit that is more likely
than

not to be realized Adjustments are made to our liability for unrecognized tax benefits in

the period in which we determine the issue is effectively settled with the tax authorities

the statute of limitations expires for the return containing the tax position or when

more information becomes available Our liability for unrecognized tax benefits

including accrued penalties and interest is included in other long-term liabilities on

our consolidated balance sheets and in income tax expense in our consolidated

statements of comprehensive income

In determining our provision for income taxes we use an annual effective income

tax rate based on full-year income permanent differences between book and

tax income and statutory income tax rates The effective income tax rate also

reflects our assessment of the ultimate outcome of tax audits Discrete events

such as audit settlements or changes in tax laws are recognized in the period

in which they occur Based on current knowledge we do not believe there is

reasonable likelihood that there will be material change in the estimates

or assumptions used to determine the amounts recorded for income taxes

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table lists our contractual obligations and commitments at August 31 2012 In millions

Payments Due by Period

Total Less Than Year 13 Years 35 Years Over Years

Operating leases $35356 $2412 $4758 $4517 $23669

Purchase obligations

Open inventory purchase orders 1679 1679

Real estate development 227 146 24 57

Other corporate obligations 1566 907 409 182 68

Long-term debt 5388 1315 10 4056

Interest payment on long-term debt 407 116 105 105 81

lnsurance 635 240 178 88 129

Retiree health 342 10 25 31 276

Closed location obligations 116 25 31 20 40

Capital
lease obligations 134 11 106

Other long-term liabilities reflected on the balance sheet 984 76 219 152 537

Total $46834 $6935 $5770 $5167 $28962

Recorded on balance sheet

Amounts for operating leases and capital leases do not include certain operating expenses under these leases such as common area maintenance insurance nd real estate taxes

These expenses were $419 million
for

the fiscal year ended August 31 2012

Purchase
obligations

include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable
and

legally binding and that
specify

all
siguificant terms including open purchase orders

Total long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheet includes $34 million
fair

market value adjustment and $4 million
of

unamortized discount

Includes $141 million $86 million in 13 years $43 million in 35 years and $12 million over years of unrecognized tax benefits recorded under Accounting Standards

Codification ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes

2012 Walgreens Annual Report 23



The obligations and commitments included in the table above do not include

unconsolidated partially owned entities such as Alliance Boots GmbH of which

we own 45% of the outstanding share capital The expected timing of payments of

the obligations above is estimated based on current information Timing of payments

and actual amounts paid may be different depending on the time of receipt of

goods or services or changes to agreed-upon amounts for some obligations

In connection with the Alliance Boots Purchase and Option Agreement dated

June 18 2012 we have the right but not the obligation to purchase the remaining

55% interest in Alliance Boots GmbH at any time during the period beginning

February 2015 and ending August 2015 If we exercise this call option

we would subject to the terms and conditions of such agreement be obligated to

make cash payment of 3.1 33 billion equivalent to approximately $5.0 billion

based on exchange rates as of August31 2012 and issue approximately

144.3 million shares of our common stock with the amount and form of such

consideration being subject to adjustment in certain circumstances including if the

volume weighted average price of our common stock is below $31 .18 per share

during period shortly before the closing of the second step transaction We also

would assume the then-outstanding debt of Alliance Boots GmbH upon the closing

of the second step transaction In the event that we do not exercise the option

under certain circumstances our ownership of Alliance Boots GmbH will reduce

from 45% to 42% in exchange for nominal consideration to Walgreens

OffBalance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any unconsolidated special purpose entities and except as described

herein we do not have significant exposure to any offbalance sheet arrangements

The term offbalance sheet arrangement generally means any transaction

agreement or other contractual arrangement to which an entity unconsolidated

with us is party under which we have any obligation arising under guarantee

contract derivative instrument or variable interest or ii retained or contingent

interest in assets transferred to such entity or similar arrangement that serves

as credit liquidity or market risk support for such assets

Letters of credit are issued to support purchase obligations
and commitments

as reflected on the Contractual Obligations and Commitments table

as follows In millions

August 31 2012

Inventory purchase commitments $157

Insurance 38

Real estate development 229

Total $424

We have no offbalance sheet arrangements other than those disclosed on the

Contractual Obligations and Commitments table Both onbalance sheet and

offbalance sheet financing alternatives are considered when pursuing our capital

structure and capital allocation objectives

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued an exposure

draft on lease accounting that would require entities to recognize assets and liabilities

arising from lease contracts on the balance sheet The proposed exposure draft states

that lessees and lessors should apply right-of-use model in accounting for all

leases Under the proposed model lessees would recognize an asset for the right to

use the leased asset and
liability

for the
obligation

to make rental payments over the

lease term The lease term is defined as the longest possible term that is more likely

than not to occur The accounting by lessor would reflect its retained exposure to

the risks or benefits of the underlying leased asset lessor would recognize an asset

representing its right to receive lease payments based on the expected term of the

lease On the basis of feedback received from comment letters roundtables and

outreach sessions the FASB has made significant changes to the proposals in the

exposure draft and therefore has decided to re-expose the revised exposure draft in the

first quarter of calendar 2013 The proposed standard as currently drafted will have

material impact on the Companys reported results of operations and financial position

The impact of this exposure draft is non-cash in nature and will not affect the

Companys cash position

In July 2012 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2012-02 which

permits an entity to make qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more

likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset other than goodwill is impaired

If an entity concludes based on an evaluation of all relevant qualitative factors

that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible

asset is less than its carrying amount it will not be required to perform the quantitative

impairment for that asset The ASU is effective for impairment tests performed for

fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012 fiscal 2014 with early adoption

permitted The ASU will not have material impact on the Companys reported results

of operations and financial position The impact is non-cash in nature and will not

affect the Companys cash position

Financing and Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate volatility with regard to future issuances of

fixed-rate debt and existing and future issuances of floating-rate debt Primary

exposures include U.S Treasury rates LIBOR and commercial paper rates

From time to time we use interest rate swaps and forward-starting interest rate

swaps to hedge our exposure to interest rate changes to reduce the volatility of

our financing costs and to achieve desired proportion of fixed versus floating-

rate debt based on current and projected market conditions Generally under

these swaps we agree with counterparty to exchange the difference between

fixed-rate and floating-rate interest amounts based on an agreed upon notional

principal amount

Information regarding our interest rate swap transactions is set forth in Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements These financial instruments are sensitive

to changes in interest rates On August 31 2012 we had $4.8 billion in long-term

debt obligations that had floating interest rates one percentage point increase

or decrease in interest rates would increase or decrease the annual interest

expense we recognize and the cash we pay for interest expense by approximately

$48 million In conjunction with the September 2012 notes issuance we refinanced

$3.0 billion of the $4.8 billion outstanding floating rate long-term debt at August 31

2012 This refinancing included $550 million of floating rate notes which accrue

interest at the rate equal to the three-month U.S dollar LIBOR as determined at

the beginning of each quarterly period pIus 0.500% The remaining notes that

were part of the refinancing were at fixed rates one percentage point increase

or decrease in the three-month U.S dollar LIBOR would increase or decrease the

annual interest expense we recognize and the cash we pay for interest expense

on these floating rate notes by approximately $6 million

In connection with our Purchase and Option Agreement with Alliance Boots and

the transactions contemplated thereby our exposure to foreign currency risks

primarily with respect to the British pound sterling and to lesser extent the

Euro and certain other foreign currencies is expected to increase We are

exposed to the translation of foreign currency earnings to the U.S dollar as

result of our 45% interest in Alliance Boots GmbI-I which we account for using

the equity method of accounting on one month lag Foreign currency forward

contracts and other derivative instruments may be used from time to time in

some instances to hedge in full or in part certain risks relating to foreign currency

denominated assets and liabilities intercompany transactions and in connection

with acquisitions joint ventures or investments outside the United States As of

August 31 2012 and August 31 2011 we did not have any outstanding foreign

exchange derivative instruments

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations

and Financial Condition continued

24 2012 Walgreens Annual Report



Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report and other documents that we file or furnish with the Securities and

Exchange Commission contain forward-looking statements that are based on current

expectations estimates forecasts and projections about our future performance

our business our beliefs and our managements assumptions In addition we

or others on our behalf may make forward-looking statements in press releases

or written statements on the Companys website or in our communications and

discussions with investors and analysts in the normal course of business through

meetings webcasts phone calls conference calls and other communications

Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements including

forward-looking information concerning our investment in Alliance Boots GmbH and

the other transactions contemplated by the Purchase and Option Agreement with

Alliance Boots and their possible effects levels of business with Express Scripts

customers estimates of the impact of developments on our earnings and earnings

per share network participation cough/cold and flu season prescription volume

pharmacy sales trends prescription margins number and location of new store

openings vendor payer and customer relationships and terms possible new

contracts or contract extensions competition economic and business conditions

outcomes of litigation and regulatory matters the level of capital expenditures

industry trends demographic trends growth strategies financial results cost

reduction initiatives acquisition and joint venture synergies competitive strengths

and changes in legislation or regulations Words such as expect likely

outlook forecast would could should can will project intend

plan goal continue sustain synergy on track believe seek

estimate anticipate may possible assume variations of such words

and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements

which are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements are not guarantees

of future performance and are subject to risks uncertainties and assumptions that

could cause actual results to vary materially from those indicated including risks

that the proposed transactions disrupt plans and operations of either us or Alliance

Boots GmbH the ability to realize anticipated synergies and achieve anticipated

financial results the amount of costs fees expenses and charges incurred by

Walgreens or Alliance Boots related to the transactions the risks associated with

international business operations the risks associated with governance and control

matters with respect to Alliance Boots GmbH whether the option to acquire the

remainder of the Alliance Boots equity interest will be exercised changes in vendor

payer and customer relationships and terms changes in network participation

competition changes in economic and business conditions generally or in the

markets we or Alliance Boots participate risks associated with new business

initiatives and activities the failure to obtain new contracts or extensions of existing

contracts the availability and cost of real estate and construction risks associated

with acquisitions joint ventures strategic investments and divestitures the ability

to realize anticipated results from capital expenditures and cost reduction initiatives

outcomes of
legal

and
regulatory matters changes in

legislation or regulations or

interpretations thereof and those described in Item Risk Factors in our Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31 2012 and in other reports that we file

or furnish with the Securities and Exchange Commission Should one or more of

these risks or uncertainties materialize or should underlying assumptions prove

incorrect actual results may vary materially
from those indicated or anticipated

by such forward-looking statements Accordingly you are cautioned not to place

undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which speak only as of

the date they are initially
made Except to the extent required by law we do not

undertake and expressly disclaim any duty or obligation
to update publicly any

forward-looking statement after the date the statement is made whether as

result of new information future events changes in assumptions or otherwise
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Walgreen Co and Subsidiaries for the years ended August 31 2012 2011 and 2010 In millions except per
share amounts

2011

$72184

51692

20492

16561

2010

$67420

48444

18976

15518

Net sales

2012

$71633

51291

20342

Cost of sales

Gross Profit

Selling general and administrative expenses 16878

Gain on sale of business 434

Operating Income 3464 4365 3458

Interest expense net 88 71 85

Earnings Before Income Tax Provision 3376 4294 3373

Income tax provision 1249 1580 1282

Net Earnings 2127 2714 2091

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Reduction addition of postretirement liability 52 40 61

Comprehensive Income 2179 2754 2030

Net earnings per common share basic 2.43 2.97 2.13

Net earnings per common share diluted 2.42 2.94 2.12

Average shares outstanding 874.7 91 5.1 981 .7

Dilutive effect of stock options 5.4 9.4 6.2

Average diluted shares 880.1 924.5 987.9

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are integral parts of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity
Waigreen Co and Subsidiaries for the years ended August 31 2012 2011 and 2010 In millions except shares and per

share amounts

Accumulated

Common Employee Other Treasury

Common Stock Paid-In Stock Loan Retained Comprehensive Stock

Stock Shares Amount Capital Receivable Earnings Income Loss Amount

Balance August 31 2009 988561390 $80 $605 $140 $15327 $37 $1533

Net earnings 2091

Dividends declared

$.5875 per share 570

Treasury stock purchases 5571 6733 1756
Employee stock purchase

and option plans 5760396 188

Stock-based compensation 84

Employee stock loan receivable 53

Additional postretirement liability

net of $34 tax benefit 61

Balance August 31 2010 938605053 $80 $684 87 $16848 $24 $3101

Net earnings 2714

Dividends declared

$7500 per share 685
Treasury stock purchases 54739474 2028
Employee stock purchase

and option plans 5428551 12 203

Other 27

Stock-based compensation 135

Employee stock loan receivable 53

Reduction of postretirement liability

net of $22 tax expense 40

Balance August 31 2011 889294130 $80 $834 34 $18877 $16 $4926

Net earnings 2127

Dividends declared

$9500 per share 848
Treasury stock purchases 34720215 1191
Employee stock purchase

and option plans 6088749 75 229

Stock-based compensation 99

Employee stock loan receivable 15

Shares issued for investment

in Alliance Boots 83392670 78 2903
Reduction of postretirement liability

net of $32 tax expense 52

Balance August 31 2012 944055334 $80 $936 19 $20156 $68 $2985

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are integral parts of these statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Walgreen Co and Subsidiaries at August 31 2012 and 2011 In millions except shares and
per

share amounts

Assets 2012 2011

Current Assets Cash and cash equivalents 1297 1556

Accounts receivable net 2167 2497

Inventories 7036 8044

Other current assets 260 225

Total Current Assets 10760 12322

Non-Current Assets Property and equipment at cost

less accumulated depreciation and amortization 12038 11526

Equity investment in Alliance Boots 6140

Alliance Boots call option 866

Goodwill 2161 2017

Other non-current assets 1497 589

Total Non-Current Assets 22702 15132

Total Assets $33462 27454

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current Liabilities Short-term borrowings 1319 13

Trade accounts payable 4384 4810

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3019 3075

Income taxes 185

Total Current Liabilities 8722 8083

Non-Current Liabilities Long-term debt 4073 2396

Deferred income taxes 545 343

Other non-current liabilities 1886 785

Total Non-Current Liabilities 6504 4524

Commitments and Contingencies see Note 11

Shareholders Equity Preferred stock $0625 par value

authorized 32 million shares none issued

Common stock $0781 25 par value authorized 3.2 billion shares

issued 1028180150 shares in 2012 and 1025400000 shares in 2011 80 80

Paid-in capital 936 834

Employee stock loan receivable 19 34

Retained earnings 20156 18877

Accumulated other comprehensive income 68 16

Treasury stock at cost 84124816 shares in 2012

and 136105870 shares in 2011 2985 4926

Total Shareholders Equity 18236 14847

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $33462 27454

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are integral parts of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Waigreen Co and Subsidiaries for the years ended August 31 2012 2011 and 2010 In millions

2012 2011 2010

Cash Flows from Net earnings $2127 $2714 $2091

Operating Activities Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net

cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 1166 1086 1030

Gain on sale of business 434

Deferred income taxes 265 132 63

Stock compensation expense 99 135 84

Other 43 53 60

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable net 394 243 124

Inventories 1083 592 307

Other current assets 24 50

Trade accounts payable 439 384 167

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 184 218 262

Income taxes 228 102 10

Other non-current assets and liabilities 109 112 110

Net cash provided by operating activities 4431 3643 3744

Cash Flows from Additions to property and equipment 1550 213 1014

Investing Activities Purchases of short-term investments

held to maturity 3000

Proceeds from short-term investments

held to maturity 3500

Return of investment in restricted cash 191 191

Proceeds from sale of assets 123 79 51

Business and intangible asset acquisitions

net of cash received 491 630 779

Payments proceeds from sale of business 45 442

Investment in Alliance Boots 4025

Other 63 32

Net cash used for investing activities 5860 525 274

Cash Flows from Payments of long-term debt 17 576

Financing Activities Issuance of long-term debt 3000

Stock purchases 1191 2028 1756

Proceeds related to employee stock plans 165 235 233

Cash dividends paid 787 647 541

Other 17 15 37

Net cash provided by used for financing activities 1170 2442 2677

Changes in Cash and Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 259 324 207

Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1556 1880 2087

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $1297 $1556 $1880

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are integral parts of these statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Major Accounting Policies

Description of Business

The Company is principally in the retail drugstore business and its operations are

within one reportable segment At August 31 2012 there were 8385 drugstore

and other locations in all 50 states the District of Columbia Guam and Puerto Rico

Prescription sales were 63.2% of total sales for fiscal 2012 compared to 64.7%

in 2011 and 65.2% in 2010

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its

subsidiaries All intercompany transactions have been eliminated The consolidated

financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the Uned States of America and include amounts based on managements

prudent judgments and estimates Actual results may differ from these estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and all highly liquid investments

with an original maturity of three months or less Credit and debit card receivables

from banks which generally settle within two business days of $88 million and $83

million were included in cash and cash equivalents at August 31 2012 and 2011

respectively At August 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had $820 million and

$1239 million respectively in money market funds all of which was included in

cash and cash equivalents

The Companys cash management policy provides for controlled disbursement

As result the Company had outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit

at certain banks These amounts which were $256 million at August 31 2012

and $229 million at August 31 2011 are included in trade accounts payable

in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets

In fiscal 2011 the Company held $191 million in restricted cash to support certain

insurance obligations In fiscal 2012 the restricted cash was released and the

obligations were supported by issued letters of credit

Inventories

Inventories are valued on lower of last-in first-out LIFO cost or market basis

At August31 2012 and 2011 inventories would have been greater by $1897 million

and $1 587 million respectively if they had been valued on lower of first-in

first-out FIFO cost or market basis As result of declining inventory levels

the fiscal 2012 LIFO provision was reduced by $268 million of LIFO liquidation

Inventory includes product costs inbound freight warehousing costs and vendor

allowances not classified as reduction of advertising expense

Equity Method Investments

The Company uses the equity method to account for investments in companies if

the investment provides the ability to exercise significant influence but not control

over operating and financial policies of the investee The Companys proportionate

share of the net income or loss of these companies is included in consolidated

net earnings Judgment regarding the level of influence over each equity method

investment includes considering key factors such as the Companys ownership

interest representation on the board of directors participation in policy-making

decisions and material intercompany transactions

Property and Equipment

Depreciation is provided on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

owned assets Leasehold improvements and leased properties under capital leases

are amortized over the estimated useful life of the property or over the term of the

lease whichever is shorter Estimated useful lives range from 10 to 39 years for

land improvements buildings and building improvements and to 13 years for

equipment Major repairs which extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized

routine maintenance and repairs are charged against earnings The majority of the

business uses the composite method of depreciation for equipment Therefore

gains and losses on retirement or other disposition of such assets are included

in earnings only when an operating location is closed completely remodeled or

impaired Fully depreciated property and equipment are removed from the cost

and related accumulated depreciation and amortization accounts

Property and equipment consists of In millions

Land and land improvements

Owned locations 3189

Distribution centers 96

Other locations 232

Buildings and building improvements

Owned locations

Leased locations leasehold improvements only

Distribution centers

Other locations

Equipment

Capitalized system development costs

Capital lease properties 149

17160 15834

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 5122 4308

$12038 $11526

Depreciation expense for property and equipment was $841 million in fiscal 2012

$809 million in fiscal 2011 and $804 million in fiscal 2010

The Company capitalizes application stage development costs for significant

internally developed software projects such as upgrades to the store point-of-sale

system These costs are amortized over five-year period Amortization

expense was $70 million in fiscal 2012 $58 million in fiscal 2011 and

$44 million in fiscal 2010 Unamortized costs at August 31 2012 and 2011

were $292 million and $230 million respectively

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of assets

acquired and liabilities assumed The Company accounts for goodwill and intangibles

under ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other which does not permit

amortization but requires the Company to test goodwill and other indefinite-lived

assets for impairment annually or whenever events or circumstances indicate

impairment may exist

Impaired Assets and Liabilities for Store Closings

The Company tests long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or circum

stances indicate that certain asset may be impaired Store locations that have

been open at least five years are reviewed for impairment indicators at least annually

Once identified the amount of the impairment is computed by comparing the

carrying value of the assets to the fair value which is based on the discounted

estimated future cash flows Impairment charges included in selling general and

administrative expenses were $27 million in fiscal 2012 $44 million in fiscal

2011 and $17 million in fiscal 2010

The Company also provides for future costs related to closed locations The liability

is based on the present value of future rent obligations and other related costs

net of estimated sublease rent to the first lease option date The reserve for store

closings was $117 million $145 million and $151 million in fiscal 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively See Note for additional disclosure regarding the Companys

reserve for future costs related to closed locations

Financial Instruments

The Company had $157 million and $143 million of outstanding letters of credit at

August 31 2012 and 2011 respectively which guarantee the purchase of foreign

goods and additional outstanding letters of credit of $38 million and $40 million at

August 31 2012 and 2011 respectively which guarantee payments of insurance

claims The insurance claim letters of credit are annually renewable and will remain

in place until the insurance claims are paid in full Letters of credit of $229 million

and $13 million were outstanding at August 31 2012 and August 31 2011

2012 2011

Locations

Distribution centers

Other locations

3209

96

240

3651

1235

596

372

4468

1098

423

328

118

3684

1518

608

525

4995

1158

586

420
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respectively to guarantee performance of construction contracts The Company

pays facility fee to the financing bank to keep these letters of credit active

The Company had real estate development purchase commitments of $206 million

and $240 million at August 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate exposure

associated with some of its fixed-rate borrowings At August 31 2012 $1 .8 billion

of fixed-rate debt was converted to variable rate These swaps are accounted for

according to ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedging The swaps are measured

at fair value in accordance with ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurement and

Disclosures Additionally in fiscal 2012 the Company entered into three forward

starting interest rate swap transactions locking in fixed rates on $1 .0 billion of

its anticipated debt financing in connection with the Alliance Boots transaction

which debt was subsequently issued in fiscal 2013 These swaps are designated

as cash flow hedges and are measured at fair value See Notes and 10 for

additional disclosure regarding financial instruments

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue at the time the customer takes possession of the

merchandise Customer returns are immaterial Sales taxes are not included in revenue

Revenue from the pharmacy benefit management PBM business was included

in the Companys Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income prior
to being

sold in fiscal 2011 The services the Company provided to its PBM clients included

plan setup claims adjudication with network pharmacies formulary management

and reimbursement services Through its PBM the Company acted as an agent in

administering pharmacy reimbursement contracts and did not assume credit risk

Therefore revenue was recognized as only the differential between the amount

receivable from the client and the amount owed to the network pharmacy The

Company acted as an agent to its clients with respect to administrative fees for

claims adjudication Those service fees were recognized as revenue

Gift Cards

The Company sells Walgreens gift cards to retail store customers and through its

website The Company does not charge administrative fees on unused gift cards and

most gift cards do not have an expiration date Income from gift cards is recognized

when the gift card is redeemed by the customer or the likelihood of the gift card

being redeemed by the customer is remote gift card breakage and there is no legal

obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards to the relevant jurisdictions

The Companys gift card breakage rate is determined based upon historical

redemption patterns Gift card breakage income which is included in selling general

and administrative expenses was not significant in fiscal 2012 2011 or 2010

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is derived based upon point-of-sale scanning information with an

estimate for shrinkage and is adjusted based on periodic inventories In addition to

product costs cost of sales includes warehousing costs purchasing costs freight

costs cash discounts and vendor allowances

Vendor Allowances

Vendor allowances are principally received as result of purchases sales or

promotion of vendors products Allowances are generally recorded as reduction

of inventory
and are recognized as reduction of cost of sales when the related

merchandise is sold Those allowances received for promoting vendors products

are offset against advertising expense and result in reduction of
selling general

and administrative expenses to the extent of advertising costs incurred with the

excess treated as reduction of inventory costs

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses mainly consist of store salaries

occupancy costs and expenses directly related to stores Other administrative

costs include headquarters expenses advertising costs net of advertising revenue

and insurance

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs which are reduced by the portion funded by vendors are expensed

as incurred Net advertising expenses which are included in
selling general and

administrative expenses were $291 million in fiscal 2012 $271 million in fiscal

2011 and $271 million in fiscal 2010 Included in net advertising expenses were

vendor advertising allowances of $239 million in fiscal 2012 $218 million in fiscal

2011 and $197 million in fiscal 2010

Insurance

The Company obtains insurance coverage for catastrophic exposures as well as those

risks required by law to be insured It is the Companys policy to retain significant

portion of certain losses related to workers compensation property comprehensive

general pharmacist and vehicle liability Liabilities for these losses are recorded

based upon the Companys estimates for claims incurred and are not discounted

The provisions are estimated in
part by considering historical claims experience

demographic factors and other actuarial assumptions

Pre-Opening Expenses

Non-capital expenditures incurred prior to the opening of new or remodeled store

are expensed as incurred

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

In accordance with ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock Compensation the Company

recognizes compensation expense on straight-line basis over the employees vesting

period or to the employees retirement eligible date if earlier

Total stock-based compensation expense for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 was

$99 million $135 million and $84 million respectively The recognized tax benefit was

$9 million $49 million and $29 million for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested awards at August 31 2012

was $115 million This cost is expected to be recognized over weighted average

of three years

Interest Expense

The Company capitalized $9 million $10 million and $12 million of interest expense

as part
of significant construction projects during fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively Interest paid which is net of capitalized interest was $108 million

in fiscal 2012 and $89 million in fiscal years 2011 and 2010

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes according to the asset and liability method

Under this method deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based upon the

estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax

bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured pursuant to tax laws using

rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax

assets and liabilities of change in tax rate is recognized in income in the period that

includes the enactment date Valuation allowances are established when necessary

to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts more likely than not to be realized

In determining the Companys provision for income taxes an annual effective income

tax rate based on full-year income permanent differences between book and tax

income and statutory income tax rates are used The effective income tax rate also

reflects the Companys assessment of the ultimate outcome of tax audits Discrete

events such as audit settlements or changes in tax laws are recognized in the period

in which they occur

The Company is subject to routine income tax audits that occur periodically
in the

normal course of business U.S federal state and local and foreign tax authorities

raise questions regarding the Companys tax filing positions including the timing and

amount of deductions and the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions

In evaluating the tax benefits associated with its various tax filing positions the Company

records tax benefit for uncertain tax positions using the highest cumulative tax

benefit that is more likely than not to be realized Adjustments are made to the

liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the period in which the Company determines

the issue is effectively settled with the tax authorities the statute of limitations

expires for the return containing the tax position or when more information becomes

available The Companys liability for unrecognized tax benefits including accrued

penalties and interest is included in other long-term liabilities on the Consolidated

Balance Sheets and in income tax expense in the Consolidated Statements of

Comprehensive Income
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementscontinued

Earnings Per Share

The dilutive effect of outstanding stock options on earnings per share is calculated

using the treasury stock method Stock options are anti-dilutive and excluded from

the earnings per share calculation if the exercise price exceeds the average market

price
of the common shares Outstanding options to purchase common shares

that were anti-dilutive and excluded from earnings per share totaled 32593870

16869061 and 30661551 in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued an exposure

draft on lease accounting that would require entities to recognize assets and liabilities

arising from lease contracts on the balance sheet The proposed exposure draft

states that lessees and lessors should apply right-of-use model in accounting for

all leases Under the proposed model lessees would recognize an asset for the right

to use the leased asset and liability for the obligation to make rental payments

over the lease term The lease term is defined as the longest possible term that is

more likely than not to occur The accounting by lessor would reflect its retained

exposure to the risks or benefits of the underlying leased asset lessor would

recognize an asset representing its right to receive lease payments based on the

expected term of the lease On the basis of feedback received from comment letters

roundtables and outreach sessions the FASB has made significant changes to the

proposals in the exposure draft and therefore has decided to re-expose the revised

exposure draft in the first quarter of calendar 2013 The proposed standard as

currently drafted will have material impact on the Companys reported results of

operations and financial position The impact of this exposure draft is non-cash in

nature and will not affect the Companys cash position

In July 2012 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2012-02 which permits

an entity to make qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely

than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset other than goodwill is impaired

If an entity concludes based on an evaluation of all relevant qualitative factors that

it is not more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset

is less than its
carrying amount it will not be required to perform the quantitative

impairment for that asset The ASU is effective for impairment tests performed for

fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012
fiscal year 2014 with early adoption

permitted The ASU will not have material impact on the Companys reported

results of operations and financial position The impact is non-cash in nature and

will not affect the Companys cash position

Restructuring

In 2008 the Company announced series of strategic initiatives approved by the

Board of Directors to enhance shareholder value One of these initiatives was

program known as Rewiring for Growth which was designed to reduce cost and

improve productivity through strategic sourcing of indirect spend reducing corporate

overhead and work throughout the Companys stores rationalization of inventory

categories and realignment of pharmacy operations These initiatives were

completed in fiscal 2011 The Company recorded $42 million of pre-tax charges

in selling general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2011 associated with

the Rewiring for Growth program and $66 million in fiscal 2010

Additionally as part
of the Companys Customer Centric Retailing CCR initiative

it has modified the store format to enhance category layouts and adjacencies

shelf heights and sight lines and brand and private brand assortments all of

which were designed to positively impact the shopper experience This initiative

was completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 In total the Company converted

5843 stores and opened 559 new stores with the CCR format In fiscal 2012

the Company incurred $33 million in total program costs of which $15 million

was included in
selling general and administrative expenses and $18 million in

capital costs In fiscal 2011 the Company incurred $144 million in total program

costs of which $84 million was included in
selling general and administrative

expenses and $60 million in
capital costs In fiscal 2010 the Company incurred

$71 million in total program costs of which $45 million was included in selling

general and administrative expenses and $26 million in
capital costs

Leases

The Company owns approximately 20% of its operating locations the remaining

locations are leased premises Initial terms are typically 20 to 25 years followed by

additional terms containing renewal options at five-year intervals and may include rent

escalation clauses The commencement date of all lease terms is the earlier of the date

the Company becomes legally obligated to make rent payments or the date the

Company has the right to control the property The Company recognizes rent expense

on straight-line basis over the term of the lease In addition to minimum fixed rentals

some leases
provide

for contingent rentals based upon portion
of sales

Minimum rental commitments at August 31 2012 under all leases having an initial or

remaining non-cancelable term of more than one year are shown below In millions

Capital Lease Operating Lease

2013 16 2447

2014 12 2437

2015 11 2385

2016 11 2325

2017 2250

Later 158 23996

Total minimum lease payments $217 $35840

The capital lease amount includes $122 million of executory costs and imputed

interest Total minimum lease payments have not been reduced by minimum

sublease rentals of approximately $29 million on leases due in the future under

non-cancelable subleases

The Company provides for future costs related to closed locations The liability is

based on the present value of future rent obligations and other related costs net

of estimated sublease rent to the first lease option date In fiscal 2012 2011 and

2010 the Company recorded charges of $20 million $54 million and $90 million

respectively for facilities that were closed or relocated under long-term leases

These charges are reported in selling general and administrative expenses on

the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

The changes in reserve for facility closings and related lease termination charges

include the following In millions

Twelve Months Ended August 31 2012 2011

Balance beginning of period $145 $151

Provision for present value of non-cancelable

lease payments of closed facilities 49

Assumptions about future sublease income

terminations and changes in interest rates 11 19
Interest accretion 25 24

Cash payments net of sublease income 48 60

Balance end of period $117 $145

The Company remains secondarily liable on 24 assigned leases The maximum

potential undiscounted future payments are $15 million at August 31 2012

Lease option dates vary with some extending to 2041

Rental expense which includes common area maintenance insurance and taxes

was as follows In millions

2012 2011 2010

Minimum rentals $2585 $2506 $2218

Contingent rentals

Less Sublease rental income 20 15

$2571 $2500 $2218
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Acquisitions and Divestitures

In May 2012 the Company completed its acquisition of certain assets of BioScrip

Inc.s BioScrip community specialty pharmacies and centralized specialty and mail

services pharmacy business for $144 million plus inventory Based on preliminary

purchase accounting the acquisition added $92 million to goodwill and $50 million

to other intangible assets The addition of BioScrips community specialty pharmacies

and centralized specialty and mail services pharmacy businesses advances

community pharmacy and brings additional specialty pharmacy products and

services closer to patients

In February 2012 the Company purchased Crescent Pharmacy Holdings LLC

Crescent an infusion pharmacy business for $73 million net of assumed cash

The Crescent acquisition added $28 million to goodwill and $26 million to intangible

assets primarily payer contracts The acquisition
is

strategic
investment to expand

the Companys infusion services in select California markets

The aggregate purchase price of all business and intangible asset acquisitions

excluding BioScrip and Crescent was $259 million in fiscal 2012 These acquisitions

added $220 million to intangible assets primarily prescription files The remaining

fair value relates to immaterial amounts of tangible assets less liabilities assumed

Operating results of businesses acquired have been included in the Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income from their respective acquisition dates

forward and were not material

In fiscal 2011 the Company acquired drugstore.com inc drugstore.com for cash

proceeds of $398 million including the assumption of $17 million of debt The

acquisition added $156 million to goodwill and $160 million related to intangible

assets The addition of drugstore.coms online business across its health personal

care beauty and vision categories better positions the Company as the most

convenient multichannel retailer of health and daily living needs in America

Also in fiscal 2011 the Company completed the sale of its pharmacy benefit

management business Walgreens Health Initiatives Inc vVHI to Catalyst Health

Solutions Inc Catalyst in cash transaction for $525 million $40 million of

which was withheld in escrow Net cash proceeds related to the transaction were

$442 million The Company recorded pre-tax gain in fiscal 2011 of $434 million

on the transaction In fiscal 2012 the Company made payment of $45 million

to
Catalyst reflecting net working capital adjustment to the sales price

Equity Method Investments

Equity method investments as of August 31 2012 and 201 were as follows

In millions except percentages

2012 2011

Carrying Ownership Carrying Ownership

Value Percentage Value Percentage

Alliance Boots $6140 45%

Other equity method

investments 30% 50% 30% 50%

Total equity method

investments $6147

A/fiance Boots

On August 2012 the Company acquired 45% of the issued and outstanding share

capital of Alliance Boots in exchange for $4025 billion in cash and approximately

83.4 million shares of Company common stock The agreement also provides

call option that allows the Company to acquire the remaining 55% of Alliance Boots

in exchange for an additional 3.1 billion in cash approximately $5.0 billion using

August 31 2012 exchange rates as well as an additional 144.3 million Company

shares subject to certain adjustments The call option can be exercised beginning six

months prior to the third anniversary of the first step transaction February 2015

and ending on the third anniversary August 2015 In the event that the Company

does not exercise the option under certain circumstances Walgreens ownership of

Alliance Boots will reduce from 45% to 42% in exchange for nominal consideration

The call option was valued using Monte Carlo simulation using assumptions

surrounding Walgreens equity value as well as the potential impacts of certain

provisions of the Purchase and Option Agreement dated June 18 2012 by and

among the Company Alliance Boots and AB Acquisitions Holdings Limited that are

described in the Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 19 2012 The preliminary

allocation resulted in $6.1 billion of the total consideration being allocated to

the investment and $866 million being allocated to the call option based on their

relative fair values

The Company accounts for its 45% investment in Alliance Boots using the equity

method of accounting Investments accounted for under the equity method are

recorded initially at cost and subsequently adjusted for the Companys share of the

net income or loss and cash contributions and distributions to or from these entities

Because the underlying net assets in Alliance Boots are denominated in foreign

currency translation gains or losses will impact the recorded value of the Companys

investment The Company adopted one-month lag in reporting equity income in

Alliance Boots and as result no earnings or translation adjustments were recorded

in fiscal 2012 The Companys investment is recorded as Equity investment in

Alliance Boots in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of August 31 2012 the Companys investment in Alliance Boots of $6.1 billion

exceeded its proportionate share of the net assets of Alliance Boots by $2.4 billion

based on preliminary estimates This premium of $2.4 billion is recognized as part

of the carrying value in the Companys equity investment in Alliance Boots

The difference is primarily related to the fair value of Alliance Boots indefinite-lived

intangible assets and goodwill The Companys equity method income from the

investment in Alliance Boots will be adjusted in future periods to reflect the

amortization of fair value adjustments in certain definite-lived assets of Alliance Boots

Based on its preliminary estimates the Company expects the incremental amortization

expense associated with the Alliance Boots investment to be approximately $75 million

during fiscal 2013 with larger amount recognized in the first quarter representing

the inventory step-up which is amortized over the first inventory turn

Other Equity Method In vestments

Other equity method investments relate to joint ventures associated with the purchase

of Option Care Inc in fiscal 2007 These investments are included within other

non-current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet The Companys share of

equity income is reported within
selling general and administrative expenses in the

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Summarized Financial Information

Summarized financial information for the Companys equity method investees

is as follows

Balance Sheet In millions

AtAugust3l 2012 2011

Current assets 9193 $12

Non-current assets 20085

Current liabilities 7254

Non-current liabilities 13269

Equity 8755 13

Income Statement In millions

Year Ended August 31 20122 2011 2010

Net revenue $37 $37 $31

Gross profit
17 19 11

Net income

Share of pre-tax income from investments

accounted for using the equity method

Equity includes $380 million related to
non-controlling

interests

The Company adopted one-month lag in reporting its share of equity income in

Alliance Boots and as result no earnings were recorded in fiscal 2012
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but are

evaluated for impairment annually during the fourth quarter or more frequently if

an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce

the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying value The Company adopted

in fiscal 2012 ASU 2011-08 Testing Goodwill for Impairment which permits

qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not more than

50 percent likelihood that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying

amount which would then require performing step one of impairment testing

Otherwise no further evaluation would be necessary As part of the Companys

impairment analysis for each reporting unit the Company engaged third party

appraisal firm to assist in the determination of estimated fair value for each unit

This determination included estimating the fair value using both the income and

market approaches The income approach requires management to estimate

number of factors for each reporting unit including projected future operating

results economic projections anticipated future cash flows and discount rates

The market approach estimates fair value using comparable marketplace fair

value data from within comparable industry grouping

The determination of the fair value of the reporting
units and the allocation of that

value to individual assets and liabilities within those reporting units requires the

Company to make
significant

estimates and assumptions These estimates and

assumptions primarily include but are not limited to the selection of appropriate

peer group companies control premiums appropriate for acquisitions in the

industries in which the Company competes the discount rate terminal growth

rates and forecasts of revenue operating income depreciation and amortization

and capital expenditures The allocation requires several analyses to determine fair

value of assets and liabilities including among other things purchased prescription

files customer
relationships

and trade names Although the Company believes its

estimates of fair value are reasonable actual financial results could differ from

those estimates due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making such estimates

Changes in assumptions concerning future financial results or other underlying

assumptions could have significant impact on either the fair value of the reporting

units the amount of the goodwill impairment charge or both The Company

also compared the sum of the estimated fair values of its reporting units to

the Companys total value as implied by the market value of its equity and debt

securities This comparison indicated that in total its assumptions and estimates

were reasonable However future declines in the overall market value of the

Companys equity and debt securities may indicate that the fair value of one or

more reporting units has declined below its carrying value

One measure of the sensitivity of the amount of goodwill impairment charges to

key assumptions is the amount by which each reporting unit passed fair value

exceeds the carrying amount or failed the carrying amount exceeds fair value

the first step of the goodwill impairment test The Companys reporting units fair

values exceeded their carrying amounts by less than 10% to more than 140%

The fair value of one reporting
unit exceeded its

carrying
amount by less than 10%

Goodwill allocated to this reporting unit was $255 million at May 31 2012 For this

reporting unit relatively modest changes in the Companys key assumptions may

have resulted in the recognition of goodwill impairment charge The Companys

Long Term Care Pharmacys goodwill was impaired by $16 million in fiscal 2010

as result of the asset sale agreement with Omnicare Inc which was signed

on August 31 2010

Generally changes in estimates of expected future cash flows would have similar

effect on the estimated fair value of the reporting un That is 1% change in estimated

future cash flows would change the estimated fair value of the reporting unit by

approximately 1% The estimated long-term rate of net sales growth can have

significant impact on the estimated future cash flows and therefore the fair value

of each reporting unit For the reporting unit whose fair value exceeded
carrying value

by less than 10% 1% decrease in the long-term net sales growth rate would have

resulted in the reporting unit failing the first step of the goodwill impairment test

Of the other key assumptions that impact the estimated fair values most reporting

units have the greatest sensitivity to changes in the estimated discount rate

1% increase in estimated discount rate for the reporting unit whose fair value

exceeded carrying value by less than 10% would also have resulted in the reporting

unit failing step one The Company believes that its estimates of future cash flows

and discount rates are reasonable but future changes in the underlying assumptions

could differ due to the inherent uncertainty in making such estimates

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill consist of the following activity

In millions

2012 2011

Net book value September

Goodwill $2045 $1915

Accumulated impairment losses 28 28

Total 2017 1887

Acquisitions 120 158

Other 24 28

Net book value August31 $2161 $2017

Other primarily represents immaterial purchase accounting adjustments for the

Companys acquisitions

The carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets consists

of the following In millions

2012 2011

Gross
Intangible

Assets

Purchased prescription files 984 913

Favorable lease interests 388 385

Purchasing and payer contracts 334 308

Non-compete agreements 120 95

Trade name 189 71

Other amortizable intangible assets

Total gross intangible
assets 2019 1776

Accumulated amortization

Purchased prescription files 417 338
Favorable lease interests 109 76

Purchasing and payer contracts 119 94

Non-compete agreements 53 43
Trade name 32 11
Other amortizable intangible assets

Total accumulated amortization 733 564

Total intangible assets net $1286 $1212

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $255 million in fiscal 2012

$219 million in fiscal 2011 and $182 million in fiscal 2010 The weighted-average

amortization period for purchased prescription files was seven years for fiscal 2012

and 2011 The weighted-average amortization period for favorable lease interests

was 11 years for fiscal 2012 and 2011 The weighted-average amortization
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period for purchasing and payer contracts was 13 years for fiscal 2012 and 2011

The weighted-average amortization period for non-compete agreements was

six years for fiscal 2012 and five years for fiscal 2011 The weighted-average

amortization period for trade names was 13 years for fiscal 2012 and nine years

for fiscal 2011 The weighted-average amortization period for other amortizable

intangible assets was 10 years for fiscal 2012 and 2011

Expected amortization expense for intangible assets recorded at August 31 2012

not including amounts related to Alliance Boots that will be amortized through equity

method investment income is as follows In millions

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$252 $217 $182 $144 $99

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of the following In millions

2012 2011 2010

Current
provision

Federal 890 $1301 $1129

State 120 147 90

1010 1448 1219

Deferred provision

Federal 251 113 62

State 12 19

239 132 63

Income tax provision $1249 $1 580 $1 282

The difference between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax

rate is as follows

2012 2011 2010

Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income taxes net of federal benefit 2.1 2.6 2.2

Medicare Part Subsidy 1.3

Other 0.1 0.8 0.5

Effective income tax rate 37.0% 36.8% 38.0%

The deferred tax assets and liabilities included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

consist of the following In millions

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets

Postretirement benefits 217 214

Compensation and benefits 182 165

Insurance 157 226

Accrued rent 142 112

Tax benefits 214 327

Stock compensation 189 179

Inventory
96 143

Other 92 78

Subtotal 1289 1444

Less Valuation allowance 19 91

Total deferred tax assets 1270 353

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated depreciation 1332 176

Inventory 534 476

Intangible assets 28 49

Other 80 31

Subtotal 1974 1732

Net deferred tax liabilities 704 379

At August 31 2012 the Company has recorded deferred tax assets of $171 million

reflecting
the benefit of $328 million in federal and $1248 million in state loss

carryforwards These deferred tax assets will expire at various dates from 2013

through 2031

The Company believes it is more likely than not that the benefit from certain net

operating loss carryforwards will not be realized In recognition of this risk the

Company has recorded valuation allowance of $19 million on certain deferred

tax assets relating to these net operating losses as of August 31 2012

Income taxes paid were $1203 million $1320 million and $1195 million during

the fiscal years ended August 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes provides guidance regarding the recognition measurement

presentation and disclosure in the financial statements of tax positions taken or expected

to be taken on tax return including the decision whether to file in
particular

jurisdiction
All unrecognized benefits at August 31 2012 and August 31 2011

were classified as long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

The following table provides reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized

tax benefits for fiscal 2012 In millions

2012 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year 94 93 $128

Gross increases related to tax positions

in prior period 100 25 12

Gross decreases related to tax positions

in prior period 49 68 57
Gross increases related to tax positions

in the current period 53 54 37

Settlements with taxing authorities 21

Lapse of statute of limitations

Balance at end of year $197 94 93

At August 31 2012 2011 and 2010 $118 million $81 million and $57 million

respectively of unrecognized tax benefits would favorably impact the effective tax

rate if recognized

The Company recognizes interest and
penalties

in the income tax provision in its

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income At August 31 2012 and

August 31 2011 the Company had accrued interest and penalties of $23 million

and $24 million respectively

The Company files consolidated U.S federal income tax return as well as income

tax returns in various states It is no longer under audit examination for U.S federal

income tax purposes for any years prior to fiscal 2010 One issue related to fiscal

2008 and 2009 remains unresolved and is currently in appeals The Company

anticipates
that this issue will be resolved in fiscal 2013 With few exceptions it is

no longer subject to state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for

years before fiscal 2006

It is reasonably possible that the amount of the unrecognized tax benefit with respect

to certain unrecognized tax positions will increase or decrease during the next

12 months however the Company does not expect the change to have material

effect on its results of operations or its financial position
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementscontinued

Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt

Short-term borrowings and long-term debt consists of the following

at August 31 In millions

2012 2011

Short-Term Borrowings

Current maturities of loans assumed through

the purchase of land and buildings various

interest rates from 5.00% to 8.75%

various maturities from 2013 to 2035

4.875% unsecured notes due 2013 net of

unamortized discount and interest rate swap

fair market value adjustment see Note 1305

Other

Total short-term borrowings $1319 13

Long-Term Debt

4.875% unsecured notes due 2013 net of

unamortized discount and interest rate swap

fair market value adjustment see Note $1 339

5.250% unsecured notes due 2019 net of

unamortized discount and interest rate swap

fair market value adjustment see Note 1030 01

Bridge Facility see Note 16 3000

Loans assumed through the purchase of land and buildings

various interest rates from 5.00% to 8.75% various

maturities from 2013 to 2035 52 54

4082 2404

Less current maturities

Total long-term debt $4073 $2396

On July 17 2008 the Company issued notes totaling $1.3 billion bearing an interest

rate of 4.875% paid semiannually in arrears on February and August of each

year beginning on February 2009 The notes will mature on August 2013

The Company may redeem the notes at any time in whole or from time to time in

part at its option at redemption price equal to the greater of 100% of the

principal amount of the notes to be redeemed or the sum of the present values

of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted to the

date of redemption on semiannual basis at the Treasury Rate plus 30 basis

points plus accrued interest on the notes to be redeemed to but excluding the

date of redemption If change of control triggering event occurs unless the

Company has exercised its option to redeem the notes it will be required to offer

to repurchase the notes at purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount

of the notes plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption The notes

are unsecured senior debt obligations and rank equally with all other unsecured

senior indebtedness of the Company The notes are not convertible or exchangeable

Total issuance costs relating to this offering were $9 million which included

$8 million in underwriting fees The fair value of the notes as of August 31 2012

and 2011 was $1350 million and $1 403 million respectively Fair value for

these notes was determined based upon quoted market prices

On January 13 2009 the Company issued notes totaling $1 .0 billion bearing an

interest rate of 5.250% paid semiannually in arrears on January 15 and July 15

of each year beginning on July 15 2009 The notes will mature on January 15

2019 The Company may redeem the notes at any time in whole or from time to

time in part at its option at redemption price equal to the greater of 1100%
of the principal amount of the notes to be redeemed or the sum of the present

values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted

to the date of redemption on semiannual basis at the Treasury Rate plus 45

basis points plus accrued interest on the notes to be redeemed to but excluding

the date of redemption If change of control triggering event occurs unless the

Company has exercised its option to redeem the notes it will be required to offer to

repurchase the notes at purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount of

the notes plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption The notes are

unsecured senior debt
obligations

and rank equally with all other unsecured senior

indebtedness of the Company The notes are not convertible or exchangeable Total

issuance costs relating to this offering were $8 million which included $7 million

in underwriting fees The fair value of the notes as of August 31 2012 and 2011

was $1160 million and $1173 million respectively Fair value for these notes was

determined based upon quoted market prices

On August 2012 the Company borrowed $3.0 billion of its available $3.5 billion

variable rate 364-day bridge term loan obtained in connection with the investment in

Alliance Boots Interest was reset monthly based upon the one-month LIBOR plus

fixed margin paid on monthly basis In fiscal 2012 interest expense on the bridge

loan was $21 million which included $18 million in one-time costs On September13

2012 the Company repaid in full all amounts borrowed under the bridge loan with

portion of the net proceeds from public offering of $4.0 billion of notes see Note 16

The Company has had no activity or outstanding balances in its commercial paper

program since fiscal 2009 In connection with the commercial paper program

the Company maintains two unsecured backup syndicated lines of credit that total

$1.35 billion The first $500 million facility expires on July 20 2015 and allows

for the issuance of up to $250 million in letters of credit The second $850 million

facility expires on July 23 2017 and allows for the issuance of up to $200 million

in letters of credit The issuance of letters of credit under either of these facilities

reduces available borrowings The Companys ability to access these facilities is

subject to compliance with the terms and conditions of the credit facilities including

financial covenants The covenants require the Company to maintain certain financial

ratios related to minimum net worth and priority debt along with limitations on the

sale of assets and purchases of investments At August 31 2012 the Company

was in compliance with all such covenants The Company pays facility fee to the

financing banks to keep these lines of credit active At August 31 2012 there were

no letters of credit issued against these credit facilities and the Company does not

anticipate any future letters of credit to be issued against these facilities

Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative instruments to manage its interest rate exposure

associated with some of its fixed-rate borrowings The Company does not use

derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes All derivative instruments

are recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value The Company

designates interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of fixed-rate borrowings

For derivatives designated as fair value hedges the change in the fair value of

both the derivative instrument and the hedged item are recognized in earnings in

the current period At the inception of hedge transaction the Company formally

documents the hedge relationship and the risk management objective
for undertaking

the hedge In addition it assesses both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing

basis whether the derivative in the hedging transaction has been
highly

effective

in offsetting changes in fair value of the hedged item and whether the derivative

is expected to continue to be highly effective The impact of any ineffectiveness

is recognized currently
in earnings

Counterparties to derivative financial instruments expose the Company to credit-

related losses in the event of nonperformance but the Company regularly monitors

the creditworthiness of each counterparty

Fair Value Hedges

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges the

gain or loss on the derivative as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged

item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in interest expense on the
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Fair value changes in derivatives

that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recorded in other

comprehensive income with any ineffectiveness recorded in interest expense

In January 2010 the Company terminated its
existing

one-month future LIBOR

swaps that converted all $1 .3 billion of its 4.875% fixed-rate debt to floating

Upon termination the Company received payment from its counterparty that

consisted of accrued interest and an amount representing the fair value of

the swaps The related fair value benefit attributed to the Companys debt

continues to amortize over the life of the debt which matures on August 2013

The Company then entered into six-month LIBOR in arrears swaps with two

counterparties for all of its $1 .3 billion 4.875% fixed-rate debt

In May 2011 the Company entered into interest rate swaps with two counterparties

converting $250 million of its 5.250% fixed-rate notes to floating interest rate

based on the six-month LIBOR in arrears plus constant spread In March 2012

the Company entered into interest rate swaps with the same two counterparties

converting an additional $250 million of its 5.250% fixed-rate notes to floating

interest rate based on the one-month LIBOR in arrears plus constant spread

All swap termination dates coincide with the notes maturity date January 15 2019

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 the Company entered into three forward starting

interest rate swap transactions locking in the then current interest rate on

$1.0 billion of its anticipated debt issuance in connection with the Alliance Boots

investment The swaps were terminated subsequent to year end when the hedged

debt was issued in September 2012 The swap transactions were designated as

cash flow hedges

The notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at August 31 2012

and 2011 were as follows In millions

2012 2011

Derivatives designated as hedges

Interest rate swaps $1800 $1550

Forward interest rate swaps 1000

The changes in fair value of the notes attributable to the hedged risk are included

in long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets see Note and amortized

through maturity At August 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had net unamortized

fair value changes of $40 million and $57 million respectively Changes in fair value

of the cash flow hedges are included in other comprehensive income with any

ineffectiveness recorded directly to interest expense Upon termination of the cash

flow hedges cumulative changes included in other comprehensive income will be

amortized with the anticipated debts cash flow No material fair value changes or

ineffectiveness was recorded through other comprehensive income in fiscal 2012

The fair value and balance sheet presentation of derivative instruments at

August 31 2012 were as follows In millions

Location in

Consolidated Balance Sheet 2012 2011

Asset derivatives designated as hedges

Interest rate swaps Other current assets $24

Forward interest rate swaps Other non-current assets

Interest rate swaps Other non-current assets 39 63

Gains and losses relating to the ineffectiveness of the Companys derivative instru

ments are recorded in interest expense on the Consolidated Condensed Statement

of Comprehensive Income The Company recorded $2 million gain in fiscal 2012

and $1 million in fiscal 2011

10 Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures certain assets and liabilities in accordance with ASC Topic

820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC Topic 820 defines fair value

as the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date

In addition it establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and

unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels

Level Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement

date for identical assets and liabilities The fair value hierarchy gives the

highest priority to Level inputs

Level Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets

Level Unobservable inputs
for which there is little or no market data available

The fair value hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level inputs

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis were

as follows In millions

August 31 2012 Level Level Level

Assets

Money market funds 820 820

Interest rate swaps 63 63

Forward interest rate swaps

August31 2011 Level Level Level

Assets

Money market funds $1239 $1239

Interest rate swaps 63 63

Interest rate swaps are valued using the six-month and one-month LIBOR in arrears

rates See Note for additional disclosure regarding financial instruments

Assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis were as follows In millions

August31 2012 Level Level Level

Assets

Alliance Boots call option 866 $866

The call option was valued using Monte Carlo simulation using assumptions

surrounding Walgreens equity value as well as the potential impacts of the certain

provisions of the Purchase and Option Agreement dated June 18 2012 by and

among the Company Alliance Boots and AB Acquisitions Holdings Limited

The Company reports its debt instruments under the guidance of ASC Topic 825

Financial Instruments which requires disclosure of the fair value of the Companys

debt in the footnotes to the consolidated condensed financial statements

See Note for further details

11 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in legal proceedings including the matters described below

and is subject to investigations inspections audits inquiries and similar actions by

governmental authorities arising
in the normal course of the Companys business

Litigation in general and securities and class action litigation in particular can be

expensive and disruptive Some of these suits may purport or may be determined to

be class actions and/or involve parties seeking large and/or indeterminate amounts

including punitive or exemplary damages and may remain unresolved for several

years From time to time the Company is also involved in legal proceedings as

plaintiff involving antitrust tax contract intellectual property and other matters

Gain contingencies if any are recognized when they are realized The results of

legal proceedings are often uncertain and difficult to predict and the costs incurred

in litigation can be substantial regardless of the outcome

On quarterly basis the Company assesses its liabilities and contingencies for

outstanding legal proceedings and reserves are established on case-by-case basis

for those legal claims for which management concludes that it is probable that

loss will be incurred and that the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated

Managements assessment of current
litigation

and other legal proceedings including

the corresponding accruals could change because of the discovery of facts with

respect to legal actions or other proceedings pending against the Company which

are not presently known Adverse determinations by judges juries or other parties
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could also result in changes to managements assessment of current liabilities and

contingencies The ultimate costs of resolving these claims may be substantially

higher or lower than the amounts reserved Due to the inherent difficulty of predicting

the outcome of litigation and other legal proceedings the Company cannot predict

the eventual outcome of these matters and it is reasonably possible that some of

them could be resolved unfavorably to the Company As result it is possible that

the Companys results of operations or cash flows in particular fiscal period could be

materially affected by an unfavorable resolution of pending litigation or contingencies

However based on its current knowledge management does not expect reasonably

possible losses relating to the outcome of current litigation and legal proceedings

after consideration of applicable reserves and rights to indemnification to be material

to the Companys consolidated financial position

On April 2012 the United States Drug Enforcement Administration DEA served

administrative inspection warrants on six Waigreen retail pharmacies in Florida

and removed certain controlled substance prescription records and other related

documents DEA also served an inspection warrant and an administrative subpoena

for records on the Walgreens distribution center in Jupiter Florida DEA issued

separate administrative subpoena for records from the Walgreens facility in

Orlando Florida on August 2012 On September 14 2012 DEA served an

Order to Show Cause OSC and Immediate Suspension Order ISO on the Jupiter

Distribution Center and placed under seal the controlled substance inventory at

that facility Walgreens timely requested hearing to demonstrate why DEA

should not permanently revoke the controlled substance registration from the

Jupiter Distribution Center On October 10 2012 Walgreens filed petition in

the U.S Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia challenging DEAs authority

to issue the ISO

SEC regulations require disclosure of certain environmental matters when governmental

authority is party
to the proceedings and the proceedings involve potential monetary

sanctions that management reasonably believes could exceed $100000 On July

2012 number of California District Attorneys served the Company with civil

complaint filed in the Alameda County Superior Court alleging certain violations of

the states hazardous waste regulations related to the proper disposal of various

materials from the Companys retail stores and seeking injunctive relief civil penalties

and certain fees and expenses The California District Attorneys filed an amended

complaint on July 12 2012 and motion for preliminary injunction on August

2012 The Company intends to work with state and local officials in an effort to

resolve this matter but cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these efforts

12 Capital Stock

The Board of Directors long-term capital policy is to maintain strong balance sheet

and financial flexibility reinvest in its core strategies invest in strategic opportunities

that reinforce its core strategies and meet return requirements and return surplus

cash flow to shareholders in the form of dividends and share repurchases over the

long term In connection with the Companys capital policy its Board of Directors

authorized share repurchase program 2009 repurchase program and set long-

term dividend payout ratio target between 30 and 35 percent of net income The

2009 repurchase program which was completed in September 2010 allowed for the

repurchase of up to $2.0 billion of the Companys common stock On October 13

2010 the Board of Directors authorized the 2011 repurchase program which was

completed in July 201 which allowed for the repurchase of up to $1.0 billion of

the Companys common stock On July 13 201 the Board of Directors authorized

the 2012 repurchase program which allows for the repurchase of up to $2.0 billion

of the Companys common stock prior to its expiration on December 31 2015

Activity related to these programs was as follows In millions

Fiscal Year Ended 2012 2011 2010

2009 stock repurchase program 360 $1640

2011 stock repurchase program 000

2012 stock repurchase program 1151 424

$1151 $1784 $1640

The Company determines the timing and amount of repurchases from time to time

based on its assessment of various factors including prevailing market conditions

alternate uses of capital liquidity the economic environment and other factors

The Company anticipates that the pace of any future share repurchase activity may

be
significantly

curtailed from the levels achieved in the preceding two years due to

its investment in Alliance Boots The timing and amount of these purchases may

change at any time and from time to time The Company has repurchased and

may from time to time in the future repurchase shares on the open market through

Rule 0b5-1 plans which enable company to repurchase shares at times when

it otherwise might be precluded from doing so under insider trading laws

In addition the Company continued to repurchase shares to support the needs of

the employee stock plans Shares totaling $40 million were purchased to support the

needs of the employee stock plans during fiscal 2012 as compared to $244 million

in fiscal 2011 At August 31 2012 58849238 shares of common stock were

reserved for future issuances under the Companys various employee benefit plans

13 Stock Compensation Plans

The Walgreen Co Stock Purchase/Option Plan Share Walgreens provides for the

granting of options to purchase common stock over 10-year period to eligible

non-executive employees upon the purchase of Company shares subject to certain

restrictions Employees may purchase Company shares through cash purchases or

loans The option price is the closing price of share of common stock on the grant

date Options may be granted under this Plan until September 30 2012 for an

aggregate of 42000000 shares of common stock At August 31 2012 there were

13366481 shares available for future grants The options granted during fiscal

2012 2011 and 2010 have three-year vesting period

The Walgreen Co Executive Stock Option Plan provides for the granting of options to

eligible key employees to purchase common stock over 10-year period at price

not less than the fair market value on the date of the grant Under this Plan options

may be granted until January 13 2020 for an aggregate of 63400000 shares of

common stock At August 31 2012 15984563 shares were available for future

grants The options granted during fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 have three-year

vesting period

The Walgreen Co Broad Based Employee Stock Option Plan provides for the granting

of options to eligible non-executive employees to purchase common stock over

10-year period at price not less than the fair market value on the date of the grant

Under this Plan on March 11 2003 substantially all non-executive employees

in conjunction with the opening of the Companys 4000th store were granted stock

option to purchase 100 shares The Plan authorized the grant of an aggregate of

15000000 shares of common stock At August 31 2012 7905555 shares were

available for future grants The options vested and became exercisable on March 11

2006 and any unexercised options will expire on March 10 2013 subject to earlier

termination if the optionees employment ends

summary of information relative to the Companys stock option plans follows

Weighted-

Weighted- Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic

Exercise Contractual Value

Options Shares Price Term Years In millions

Outstanding

at August 31 2011 49033846 $33.70 6.04 $193

Granted 7801023 38.34

Exercised 3245380 27.46

Expired/Forfeited 3553520 35.22

Outstanding

at August 31 2012 50035969 $34.18 5.60 $175

Vested or expected to vest

at August 31 2012 29037001 $35.35 3.90 $108

Exercisable

at August 31 2012 20147917 $32.76 7.99 65
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The fair value of each option grant was determined using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used in fiscal 2012

2011 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Risk-free interest rate 1.73% 2.12% 3.14%

Average life of option years 7.9 7.2 7.3

Volatility 27.02% 28.08% 28.01%

Dividend yield 2.90% 1.94% .91%

Weighted-average grant-date fair value

Granted at market price $8.08 $8.12 $9.80

Represents the U.S Treasury security
rates for the expected term of the option

Represents
the

period of
time that

options granted are expected to be outstanding

The Company analyzed separate groups of employees with similar exercise behavior

to determine the
expected

term

Volatility was based on historical and implied volatility of the Companys common stock

Represents
the Companys cash dividend for the expected term

The intrinsic value for options exercised in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 was $22 million

$33 million and $29 million respectively The total fair value of options vested in fiscal

2012 2011 and 2010 was $125 million $58 million and $53 million respectively

Cash received from the exercise of options in fiscal 2012 was $89 million compared to

$147 million in the prior year The related tax benefit realized was $8 million in fiscal

2012 compared to $14 million in the prior year

The Walgreen Co 1982 Employees Stock Purchase Plan permits eligible employees

to purchase common stock at 90% of the fair market value at the date of purchase

Employees may make purchases by cash loans or payroll deductions up to

certain limits The aggregate number of shares that may be purchased under

this Plan is 94000000 At August31 2012 16610192 shares were available

for future purchase

The Walgreen Co Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan amended and restated

Restricted Performance Share Plan was approved by shareholders on January 10 2007

The Plan offers performance-based incentive awards and equity-based awards to

key employees The awards are subject to restrictions as to continuous employment

except in the case of death normal retirement or total and permanent disability

Restrictions generally lapse over multiyear period from the date of grant The

Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan was authorized to grant an aggregate of

10000000 shares of common stock As of August 31 2012 4982447 shares

were available for future issuance under the Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan

In accordance with ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock Compensation compensation

expense is recognized on straight-line basis over the employees vesting period

or to the employees retirement eligible date if earlier

In fiscal 2009 the Company introduced the Restricted Stock Unit and Performance

Share Plans under the Long-Term Performance Incentive Plan In accordance with ASC

Topic 718 Compensation Stock Compensation compensation expense is recognized

on straight-line basis based on three-year cliff vesting schedule for the annual

restricted stock units and straight line over three-year vesting schedule for the

performance shares

summary of information relative to the Companys restricted stock awards follows

Weighted-Average

Nonvested Shares Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Nonvested at August 31 2011 48046 $36.13

Granted

Forfeited 3690 36.43

Vested 31355 36.02

Nonvested at August 31 2012 13001 $36.33

summary of information relative to the Companys restricted stock unit plan follows

Weighted-Average

Outstanding Shares Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Outstanding at August 31 2011 1911237 $33.94

Granted 936499 36.60

Dividends 64986

Forfeited 245033 33.01

Vested 857138 34.95

Outstanding at August 31 2012 1810551 $34.04

summary of information relative to the Companys performance share plan follows

Weighted-Average

Outstanding Shares Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Outstanding at August 31 2011 1819668 $31.83

Granted 689605 35.61

Forfeited 215948 31.76

Vested 313298 35.52

Outstanding at August 31 2012 1980027 $32.57

The Walgreen Co Nonemployee Director Stock Plan provides that each nonemployee

director receives an equity grant of shares each year on November The number of

shares granted is determined by dividing $155000 by the price of share of common

stock on November Each nonemployee director may elect to receive this annual share

grant
in the form of shares or deferred stock units Each nonemployee director received

grant
of 4788 shares in fiscal 2012 4552 shares in fiscal 2011 and 4097 shares

in fiscal 201 New directors in any of the fiscal years earned prorated amount

Effective November 2009 the payment of the annual retainer was changed to

be paid only in the form of cash which may still be deferred Previously the annual

retainer was paid one-half in cash and one-half in Walgreen Co common stock

summary of total stock-based compensation expense follows

2012 2011 2010

Stock options $62 85 78

Restricted stock units 24 20 13

Performance share plans 25

Employee stock purchase plan

$99 $135 $102

14 Retirement Benefits

The principal retirement plan for employees is the Walgreen Profit-Sharing Retirement

Trust to which both the Company and participating employees contribute

The Companys contribution which has historically related to FIFO earnings before

interest and taxes and portion of which is in the form of guaranteed match is

determined annually at the discretion of the Board of Directors The profit-sharing

provision was $283 million in fiscal 2012 $382 million in fiscal 2011 and

$300 million in fiscal 2010 The Companys contributions were $372 million

in fiscal 2012 $322 million in fiscal 2011 and $293 million in fiscal 2010

The Company provides certain health insurance benefits for retired employees

who meet eligibility requirements including age years of service and date of hire

The costs of these benefits are accrued over the service life of the employee

In fiscal 2012 the Company amended its prescription drug program for certain

Medicare-eligible retirees to group-based Company sponsored Medicare Part

program or employer group waiver program effective January 2013

The Companys postretirement health benefit plan is not funded
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Components of net periodic benefit costs In millions

2012 2011 2010

Service cost 13 15 $11

Interest cost 22 22 20

Amortization of actuarial loss 14

Amortization of prior service cost 10 10 10

Total postretirement benefit cost 33 41 $28

Change in benefit obligation In millions

2012 2011

Benefit obligation at September 407 $441

Service cost 13 15

Interest cost 22 22

Amendments 139

Actuarial gain loss 52 57
Benefit payments 18 18

Participants contributions

Benefit obligation at August 31 342 $407

Change in plan assets In millions

2012 2011

Plan assets at fair value at September

Plan participants contributions

Employer contributions 13 14

Benefits paid 18 18

Plan assets at fair value at August 31

Funded status In millions

2012 2011

Funded status $342 $407

Unrecognized actuarial gain

Unrecognized prior service cost

Accrued benefit cost at August 31 $342 $407

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets In millions

2012 2011

Current liabilities present value of expected

2013 net benefit payments 10 11
Non-current liabilities 332 396

Net liability recognized at August 31 $342 $407

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income loss

In millions

2012 2011

Prior service credit $250 $121

Net actuarial loss 161 117

Amounts expected to be recognized as components of net periodic costs

for fiscal year 2013 In millions

2013

Prior service credit 22
Net actuarial loss 11

The measurement date used to determine postretirement benefits is August 31

The discount rate assumption used to compute the postretirement benefit obligation

at year end was 4.15% for 2012 and 5.40% for 2011 The discount rate assumption

used to determine net periodic benefit cost was 5.40% 4.95% and 6.15% for

fiscal years ending 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The consumer price index

assumption used to compute the postretirement benefit obligation was 2.00%

for 2012 and 2011

Future benefit costs were estimated assuming medical costs would increase at

7.25% annual rate gradually decreasing to 5.25% over the next ten years and

then remaining at 5.25% annual growth rate thereafter one percentage point

change in the assumed medical cost trend rate would have the following effects

In millions

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on service and interest cost $1
Effect on postretirement obligation 12

Estimated future benefit payments and federal subsidy are as follows In millions

Estimated Estimated

Future Benefit Federal

Payments Subsidy

2013 10

2014 12

2015 13

2016 15

2017 16

20182022 107

15 Supplementary Financial Information

Non-cash transactions in fiscal 2012 include $2981 million in stock issuance

relating to the investment in Alliance Boots $53 million decrease in the retiree

medical liability
and $58 million increase in the liability for dividends declared

Non-cash transactions in fiscal 2011 include $116 million in accrued liabilities

related to the purchase of property and equipment $62 million increase in

the retiree medical benefit liability and $36 million increase in the liability for

dividends declared Non-cash transactions in fiscal 2010 include $95 million

increase in the retiree medical benefit liability $29 million increase in the liability

for dividends declared and $44 million in accrued liabilities related to the purchase

of property and equipment

Included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets captions are the following assets

and liabilities In millions

2012 2011

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable $2266 $2598

Allowance for doubtful accounts 99 101

$2167 $2497

Other non-current assets

Intangible assets net see Note $1286 $1212

Other 211 377

$1497 $1589

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued salaries 772 856

Taxes other than income taxes 454 489

Insurance 268 230

Profit sharing 166 253

Other 1359 1247

$3019 $3075

Other non-current liabilities

Postretirement healthcare benefits 332 396

Accrued rent 347 418

Insurance 408 346

Other 799 625

$1886 $1785
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Summary of Quarterly Results Unaudited Quarter Ended

In millions except per share amounts November February May August Fiscal Year

Fiscal 2012 Net Sales $18157 $18651 $17752 $17073 $71633

Gross Profit 5104 5389 5014 4835 20342

Net Earnings 554 683 537 353 2127

Per Common Share Basic .63 .79 .63 .40 2.43

Diluted .63 .78 .62 .39 2.42

Cash Dividends Declared Per Common Share .225 .225 .225 .275 .950

Fiscal 2011 Net Sales $17344 $18502 $18371 $17967 $72184

Gross Profit 4945 5324 5154 5069 20492

Net Earnings 580 739 603 792 2714

Per Common Share Basic .62 .80 .66 .88 2.97

Diluted .62 .80 .65 .87 2.94

Cash Dividends Declared Per Common Share .175 .175 .175 .225 .750

Results
for

the
fiscal quarter ending August 31 2011 include

pre-tax gain of $434 million and $273 million or $30
per

diluted share after tax

fram the sale of Walgreens Health Initiatives Inc pharmacy benefit management business

Common Stock Prices

Quarter Ended
Below is the Consolidated Transaction Reporting System -__________________________________________________________________

high and low sales price for each quarter of fiscal 2012 and 2011 November February May August Fiscal Year

Fiscal 2012 High $36.27 $34.60 $35.41 $36.08 $36.27

Low 30.10 31.95 30.28 28.77 28.77

Fiscal 2011 High $35.27 $42.91 $44.67 $44.91 $44.91

Low 27.17 35.17 38.82 34.11 27.17

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return

The following graph compares the five-year cumulative total return of the Companys common stock with the SP 500 Index and the

Value Line Pharmacy Services Industsy Index The graph assumes $100 investment made August 31 2007 and the reinvestment

of all dividends The historical performance of
the Companys common stock is not

necessarily
indicative

of future
stock performance

200

150

100 Waigreen Co

IuaIIIu4ICI1Li __-. SP 500 Index

50
vaiue Line Pharmacy

Services Industry Index

________________ _________________ ________________ _________________ _________________

8/07 8/08 8/09 8/10 8/11 8/12

Value of Investment at August 31

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Walgreen Co $100.00 81.71 77.29 62.41 $83.34 87.08

SP 500 Index 100.00 87.03 69.24 71.19 82.69 95.43

Value Line Pharmacy Services Industry Index 100.00 91.74 93.34 75.17 91.51 107.84

This performance graph and accompanying disclosure is not soliciting material is not deemed filed
with the SEC and is not incorporated

by reference in any of the Companys filings under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act irrespective of
the timing of

and any general

incorporation language in such
filing
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16 Subsequent Events

In connection with the Alliance Boots first-step transaction that closed on August

2012 the Company borrowed $3.0 billion under 364-day bridge loan facility

On September 13 2012 the Company repaid in full all amounts borrowed under

the bridge loan facility with portion
of the net proceeds from public offering of

$4.0 billion of notes with varying maturities and interest rates the majority of which

are fixed rate In accordance with ASC Topic 470 Debt the 364-day bridge loan

facility was refinanced on long-term basis prior to the financial statements being

issued and as result outstanding borrowings under the bridge loan facility that existed

as of August 31 2012 are classified as long-term debt on the Companys balance

sheet The following details each tranche of notes issued on September 13 2012

Notes Issued Maturity
Interest Interest

In millions Date Rate Payment Dates

550 March 13 2014 Variable March 13 June 13

three-month September 13

U.S Dollar LIBOR and December 13

reset quarterly plus commencing

50 basis points December 13 2012

750 March 13 2015 Fixed 1.0% March 13 and

September 13

commencing on

March 13 2013

1000 September 15 2017 Fixed 1.80% March 15 and

September 15

commencing on

March 15 2013

1200 September 15 2022 Fixed 3.10% March 15 and

September 15

commencing on

March 15 2013

500 September 15 2042 Fixed 4.40% March 15 and

September 15

commencing on

March 15 2013

$4000

The Company may redeem the fixed rate notes at its option at any time in whole

or from time to time in part at redemption price equal to the greater of

100% of the principal amount of the notes being redeemed and the sum of

the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest

thereon not including any portion of such payments of interest accrued as of the

date of redemption discounted to the date of redemption on semiannual basis

assuming 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months at the Treasury Rate

as defined pIus
12 basis points

for the notes due 2015 20 basis points for the

notes due 2017 22 basis points for the notes due 2022 and 25 basis points for the

notes due 2042 If change of control triggering event occurs the Company will be

required unless it has exercised its right to redeem the notes to offer to purchase

the notes at purchase price equal to 101% of their principal amount plus accrued

and unpaid interest if any on the notes repurchased to the date of repurchase

The notes are unsecured senior debt obligations and rank equally with all other

unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Company Total issuance

costs relating to the notes including underwriting discounts and fees were an

estimated $25 million

On September 17 2012 the Company completed its purchase of USA Drug

regional drugstore chain in the mid-South region of the United States from Stephen

LaFrance Holdings Inc and members of the LaFrance family The transaction

includes 144 stores that operate under the USA Drug Super Drug Mays Drug

Med-X and Drug Warehouse names located in Arkansas Kansas Mississippi

Missouri New Jersey Oklahoma and Tennessee The acquisition also includes

corporate offices distribution center located in Pine Bluff Arkansas and

wholesale and private brand business Total consideration for the purchase was

approximately $438 million subject to adjustment in certain circumstances
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Managements Report on Internal Control

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal

control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a-1

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our

principal executive officer and principal financial officer we conducted an evaluation of

the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting

based on the framework

in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based on our evaluation manage

ment concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of

August 31 2012 Deloitte Touche LLP the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm has audited our internal control over financial reporting as stated in

its
report

which is included herein

Wade Miquelon

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer and

President International

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Walgreen Co
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Walgreen Co

and Subsidiaries the Company as of August 31 2012 and 2011 and the related

consolidated statements of comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31 2012 We also

have audited the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of August

31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment

of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control

over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the

financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

financial
reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures

as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or

under the supervision of the companys principal executive and principal financial

officers or persons performing similar functions and effected by the companys

board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial
reporting

includes those policies and

procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary

to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors

of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting

including
the

possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls

material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on

timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal

control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly

in all material respects the financial position
of Walgreen Co and Subsidiaries as

of August 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31 2012 in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial
reporting as of August 31 2012 based on the criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

iDiL jL
DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Chicago Illinois

October 19 2012

Gregory Wasson

President and Chief Executive Officer

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The supplemental information in the tables below is provided to reconcile certain financial disclosures in this Annual Report

Dollars in millions except per share amounts

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Net cash provided by operating activities 4431

Additions to property and equipment 1550

Free cash flow Non-GAAP 2881

Net Earnings as reported 2127 2714 2091 2006 2157

Alliance Boots transaction costs 82

Acquisition-related amortization 161 138 16 94 68

LIEU provision 195 131 87 109 62

Gain on sale of Walgreens Health Initiatives Inc 273

Medicare Part 43

Net Earnings as adjusted Non-GAAP 2565 2710 2337 2209 2287

Net Earnings as adjusted growth Non-GAAP 5.4%

Net Earnings per Common Share diluted as reported 2.42 2.94

Alliance Boots transaction costs 0.09

Alliance Boots share issuance effect 0.02

Acquisition-related amortization 0.18 0.15

LIFO provision 0.22 0.14

Gain on sale of Walgreens Health Initiatives Inc 0.30

Net Earnings per Common Share diluted

as adjusted Non-GAAP 2.93 2.93

Net Earnings per Common Share diluted

as adjusted growth Non-GAAP 0.0%

Selling general and administrative expenses

as reported $16878 $16561 $15518 $14366 $13202 $12093

Alliance Boots transaction costs 69
Acquisition-related amortization 255 219 82 148 107 62

Selling general and administrative expenses

as adjusted Non-GAAP $16554 $16342 $15336 $14218 $13095 $12031

Selling general and administrative expense

as adjusted growth Non-GAAP 1.3% 6.6% 7.9% 8.6% 8.8%

The information above provides reconciliations of the supplemental non-GAAP

financial measures as defined under SEC rules presented in this Annual Report

to the most directly comparable financial measures calculated and presented in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

GAAP The Company has provided these supplemental non-GAAP financial

measures in the Annual Report which are not calculated or presented in accordance

with GAAP as supplemental information and in addition to the financial measures

that are calculated and presented in accordance with GMP These supplemental

non-GAAP financial measures are presented because management has evaluated

the Companys financial results both including and excluding the adjusted items

and believes that the supplemental non-GAAP financial measures presented

provide additional perspective and insights when analyzing the core operating

performance of the Companys business from period to period and trends in the

Companys historical operating results The Company defines free cash flow as

net cash provided by operating activities in period minus additions to property

and equipment capital expenditures made in that period This measure does

not represent residual cash flows available for discretionary expenditures as the

measure does not deduct the payments required for debt service and other

contractual obligations or payments for future business acquisitions Therefore

the Company believes it is important to view free cash flow as measure that

provides supplemental information to our entire statements of cash flows These

supplemental non-GMP financial measures should not be considered superior

to as substitute for or as an alternative to and should be considered in

conjunction with the GMP financial measures presented in the Annual Report
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